AGENDA
WALKER COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
WALKER COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX lIl, 201 S MAIN STREET
LAFAYETTE, GEORGIA 30728

The following constitutes the agenda for the regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia to be held at 6:00 p.m. on June 5, 2025

10.

11.

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
Invocation & Pledge
Chairwoman Teems will Call to Order the Regular Meeting
Clerk to Establish a Quorum is present
Approve Agenda

Approve Minutes
Minutes for the Regular Scheduled Meeting Held on May 1, 2025 at 6:00 p.m.

Ceremonial

The Board would like to acknowledge Kaitlyn Harris, Miss Walker County, for her upcoming
participation in the Miss Georgia Teen USA pageant from June 26th to 28th. Kaitlyn will
represent the strong values, charm, and community pride of Walker County on a statewide
platform. This is a significant achievement recognizing her hard work in becoming a part of
Miss Georgia Teen USA.

Chairwoman’s Report
Committee Reports
Department Reports

Public Hearing - Planning & Zoning

Per Walker County Code Chapter 22-109(c), all comments concerning a proposed zoning decision under
consideration by the Board of Commissioners shall be in writing prior to the commencement of the hearing. The
only exception will be the applicant who has filed the zoning request. The applicant shall be allowed five minutes
to address the Board, unless the Board allows additional time.

10.1.  Garfield Dickson requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-1 (Residential) for

property located at 154 Chattanooga Valley Road, Flintstone, GA. 30725. Tax map &
parcel number 0-079-028. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be
approved)

10.2. Wanda Darlene Myers requests a partial rezone from R-2 (Residential) to C-1

(Commercial) for property located at 705 Park City Road, Rossville, GA. 30741. Tax
map & parcel number 0-191-093. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be
approved with conditions)

10.3.  Jaxen Abbasi requests a conditional use variance to operate a dog kennel/boarding

business out of her residence located at 609 Holly Drive, Rossville, GA. 30741. Tax map
& parcel number 0-190-048. (Planning Commission recommended this variance be
denied)

Unfinished Business



12.

13.

14.

11.1.  Walker County Development Authority: Requests a rezone from A-1 (Agricultural) to I
(Industrial) for property located at 157 Glass Road LaFayette, GA. 30728. Tax map &
parcel number 0-320-036. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be denied;
Tabled at May 1st BOC Meeting)

11.2.  Walker County Development Authority: Requests a rezone from A-1 (Agricultural) to I
(Industrial) for property located at o Glass Road LaFayette, GA. 30728. Tax map &
parcel number 0-320-037. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be denied;
Tabled at May 1st BOC Meeting)

Public Comment

Consent Agenda

The Consent Agenda is a special rule of order providing for non-controversial matters to be considered in gross
or without debate or amendment. Should a Board member object to any item being in the Consent Agenda, it is
restored to the place it would have otherwise been considered on the regular agenda.

13.1.  Resolution R-038-25 to Appoint Angie Teems as Chair to the Walker County Water &
Sewerage Authority

13.2.  Resolution R-039-25 to re-appoint Kaye Thurman to the LaFayette-Walker County
Public Library Board

13.3.  Resolution R-040-25 to Appoint Randy Pittman to the Rossville Public Library Board

13.4. Approval of the LMJC Drug Court FY26 State Operating Grant. (Fiscal year start date is
July 1st, 2025).

New Business

14.1.  Resolution R-041-25 to Amend the Fee Schedule for Various County Services

14.2.  Resolution R-042-25 to forgive back taxes in the amount of $3070.85 for property
purchased by the American Legion Post 339 in LaFayette for the 0.2 acre track adjacent
to their existing property. Tax Map & Parcel number 1-038-083.

14.3. Resolution R-043-25 for the transfer of funds to a secondary bank to establish a
financial relationship.

14.4. Resolution R-044-25 to enter into a contract for Payroll Services

14.5. Resolution R-045-25 Authorizing and Approving Payment into the Pension Plan for the
Employees of Walker County, Georgia.

14.6 Resolution R-046-25 proposes an increase of $38,162.00 to the budgeted amount for
ACCG/IRMA Insurance for the fourth quarter of FY2025, starting July 1st, 2025. This
adjustment is necessary due to insurance premium increases and will involve a
reallocation of funds within the General Fund Account (100.1555.523100.00).

14.7.  Resolution R-047-25 to Authorize the Chair to Complete the Hinkle Fire Station project

14.8. Resolution R-048-25 to Designate a Regular Meeting Location

" AGENDA

WALKER COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
WALKER COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX lIl, 201 S MAIN STREET
LAFAYETTE. GEORGIA 30728




14.9.

14.10.

14.11.

14.12.

14.13.

14.14.

AGENDA
WALKER COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
WALKER COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX lil, 201 S MAIN STREET

LAFAYETTE, GEORGIA 30728

Amendment to Trail Development Agreement and Grant of Temporary Access and
Construction Easement with the Trust for Public Land for the Chickamauga Battlefield
Connector Trail

Purchase Order 2025-00001720 for $43,147.00 to NAFECO for the Walker County Fire
Department to purchase 13 Sets of Lion V Force Armor Gear (Fire Protection Gear).

Purchase Order 2025-00001721 for $53,346.42 to Municipal Emergency Services for
the purchase of 6 Scott Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus Systems & 12-Scott Snap
Quick Change Bottles for the Walker County Fire Department.

Garfield Dickson requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-1 (Residential) for
property located at 154 Chattanooga Valley Road, Flintstone, GA. 30725. Tax map &
parcel number 0-079-028. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be
approved)

Wanda Darlene Myers requests a partial rezone from R-2 (Residential) to C-1
(Commercial) for property located at 705 Park City Road, Rossville, GA. 30741. Tax
map & parcel number 0-191-093. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be
approved with conditions)

Jaxen Abbasi requests a conditional use variance to operate a dog kennel/boarding
business out of her residence located at 609 Holly Drive, Rossville, GA. 30741. Tax map

& parcel number 0-190-048. (Planning Commission recommended this variance be
denied)

15. Commissioner Comments

16. Executive Session

17. Adjourn

Next Regular Meeting - Thursday, July 10 at 6:00 p.m.

As set forth in the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1992, Walker County does not
discriminate on the basis of disability, and will assist citizens with special needs,
given proper notice. Please contact the Office of the County Clerk for assistance prior
to each meeting. We can be reached at 706-638-1453.



Walker County Governmental Authority
101 South Duke Street, P.O. Box 445
LaFayette, GA 30728

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of
Commissioners

May 1, 2025 - 6:00 PM

[. Call to Order:

Chairwoman Angie Teems called to order the Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners

held at Courthouse Annex I11, 201 S. Main Street, LaFayctte, Georgia at 6:00 PM on May 1,
2025.

II. Attendees:

The following were present: Chairwoman Teems, Commissioner Robert Blakemore,
Commissioner Mark Askew, Commissioner Brian Hart, Commissioner Gene Wilson,
County Clerk Lisa Richardson, Communications & Community Development Director
Joe Legge, Chief of Staff, Dakiya Porter, Compliance Officer Aleks Jagiella-Litts,
Planning and Zoning Director Jon Pursley, Director of Solid Waste and Environmental
Management Paine Gily. Other guests signed in at the meeting as well. Please see the
attached sign in sheet.

I1I. Approval of Agenda:

Chairwoman Teems announced an amended agenda, noting the unfortunate removal of
the graduate recognition. The organizer intends to reschedule the recognition for next
year. Chairwoman Teems stated that she belicves the entire Board shares her immensc
pride in the local graduating seniors and looks forward to their future contributions to
Walker County.
a. Commissioner Blakemore made a motion to approve the amended agenda of the
Regular scheduled meeting held on May 1, 2025 at 6:00 p.m.
b. Seconded by Commissioner Hart
No discussion
d. 4 ayes, 0 nays, motion carried. Amended agenda approved.

IV. Approval of Minutes:

Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Scheduled
Meeting held on April 3, 2025 at 6:00pm. Seconded by Commissioner Askew. 4 ayes and
0 nays, motion carried. Minutes approved.

V. Ceremonial:
Proclamation for Walker County Senior Citizen Day

The Walker County Board of Commissioners has designated May 10th, 2025, as Senior
Citizens Day in Walker County. The community will honor those who have contributed
to building Walker County at a special event at the Walker County Civic Center at 10:00



a.m. on May 14th.

The Commissioners were thanked by Robert Stultz for their ongoing support of Senior
Citizens Day. He expressed appreciation for the hard work of citizens, donors, volunteers,
and staff, which makes the event possible cach ycar. Stultz noted that Senior Citizens Day
originated as an idea in the 1970s to recognize those who contributed to the development
of the city and county, and its enduring mission is to honor senior citizens.

Don Stultz expressed his gratitude to the commissioners and recalled the inaugural Senior
Citizens Day in 1972. He noted that his father, a LaFayette Rotarian businessman,
collaborated with other community leaders to establish this event. Mr. Stultz emphasized
the collective effort of various community sectors in making the day a success. He invited
all seniors to attend the upcoming event on May 14th at the civic center, promising food,
music, and awards. He also thanked the commission and Judges Anderson and Thompson
for their significant involvement,

Proclamation for Historic Preservation Month

VI

Historic preservation can raise awareness of historically significant landmarks and
buildings, connecting us to our shared history in ways that help shape our future.

The Walker County Board of Commissioners proclaimed the Month of May as Historic
Preservation Month in Walker County.

David Boyles, President of the Walker County Historical Society, accepted the award and
expressed his gratitude for the county's ongoing support of the Marsh House Museum. He
emphasized that the museum is a community asset and invited everyone to visit. Mr.
Boyles submitted a petition with names to the board with opposition to the proposed
zoning change.

The Historical Preservation Commission is currently undertaking several initiatives for
Historic Preservation Month, as reported by Randy Pittman. These projects involve the
placement of three interpretive signs at Estelle Mines, Mineral Springs Resort, and
Lookout Mountain Durham Mines. The commission invites the public to their meetings,
which take place on the third Monday of every month at 6 pm in the public library.

Currently, the Commission is working to bring the 162nd anniversary of the Battle of
Chickamauga to Mountain Cove in Walker County. They are also in discussions with the
Atlanta Campaign Incorporated about potentially hosting the battle for Atlanta in Walker
County. The Commission emphasizes the importance of tourism as a source of funding
for Walker County.

Chairwoman's Report:

Chairwoman Teems stated her team is functioning well, characterized by strong
collaboration and productivity. The office is continually assessed for potential efficiency
improvements and cost reductions, with a forward-looking approach now being
prioritized. A key initiative is a community satisfaction survey planned for distribution in
late June. This survey aims to collect meaningful and actionable data to inform valuable
improvements. Participants will be randomly selected by a computer algorithm. An
update on the survey will be given at the June board meeting.

Ms. Teems highlighted the need for the county's financial resources to be more effective.
This involves securing better interest rates and utilizing automation and technology-based
solutions offered by the banking and financial industry. Chairwoman Teems is developing
a strategic plan to address these arcas and plans to present it to the board for their review
in June.



VIL

During May, as part of the county's budget preparation, Ms. Teems will meet with
department heads, elected officials, and other offices. The board of commissioners will
then hold public meetings in early June with each department to discuss their budget
requests, with public notice provided as legally required. The final budget will be
approved at the July board meeting.

Chairwoman Teems announced an upcoming employee appreciation event. Government
offices will close for a half-day on Friday, May 16th, so staff can attend a luncheon and
gathering at the Mountain Cove property. A make-up luncheon will be held at the Civic
Center on Wednesday, May 21st, from 11:30 a.m. to 1:30 p.m. for employees who cannot
attend the May 16th event.

Committee Reports:

Solid Waste & Environmental Management Director Paine Gily commended Theresa
Dorscy and Marina Lawrence for creating a mascot for the litter campaign. This mascot
aims to strengthen the campaign's message by fostering pride in local roads, trails, and
parks, alongside promoting individual responsibility. The mascot integrates the Walker
Rocks brand, and the Walker County Chamber of Commerce is being consulted for
approval to use it in the litter campaign. Given the strong alignment between the litter
campaign's message and the principles of the Walker Rocks initiative, this partnership
would be a natural fit.

Mr. Gily is distributing anti-littering information to local businesses and schools for break
rooms and classrooms to raise awareness. Local law enforcement is in discussions with
the court system to secure community service workers for roadside litter cleanup. April
saw two successful cleanup events. The Chickamauga Women's Club conducted its
yearly Anna Haney cleanup day on April 19th, followed by a cleanup effort along
Rossville Boulevard on April 26th.

Since 2010, Deana Forrester and the Chickamauga Women's Club have spearheaded the
annual Anna Haney community clean-up day. This event brings the entire community
together to clean local roads and landscapes. Forrester also contributed to the Rossville
boulevard project, which involved mulching and other initiatives to enhance the
community's appearance..

VIII. Department Reports:

County Attorney Ken Jarrard from a local law firm addressed the Board of
Commissioners, introducing himself and his firm, which specializes in local government
risk management, contracting, and procurement in Georgia. The Board had requested Mr.
Jarrard's public opinion on a recent procurement of two heavy Mack trucks, priced at
$234,876.00 each ($471,959.00 total), in comparison to Peterbilt and Kenworth trucks
mentioned in the agenda.

Mr. Jarrard reviewed the facts from the April meeting and provided a detailed analysis of
the Mack trucks' procurement, specifically addressing whether it was an appropriate
method for purchasing more expensive trucks. Mr. Jarrard noted that, following
questions raised since the previous meeting, the County located a very comparable Mack
truck and confirmed price points were comparable.

Mr. Jarrard emphasized the Board of Commissioners' fiduciary duty as stewards of
Walker County's public funds, stating they are uniquely responsible for determining the
best interests of the county regarding goods and services. He clarified that while state
laws exist for Public Works Construction (over $100,000) and road construction
(threshold of $200,000), neither applies to the procurement of these trucks.



Mr. Jarrard also discussed Walker County’s internal purchasing policies, suggesting a
review of their language. He analyzed the county’s sealed bid process for goods and
services over $100,000, concluding it was not applicable to the truck purchase. He stated
that the Board utilized a variation of the sealed bid process to inform their decision and
subsequently confirmed the trucks were procured at a reasonable price. Mr. Jarrard
affirmed that this aligns with Georgia law, underscoring the Board’s obligation to spend
public funds wisely, and expressed his comfort with the acquisition.

Finally, Mr. Jarrard commented on Walker County’s engaged community and analyzed
how a sole source contract could potentially apply to an available truck of value.

[X. Presentation:

Presentation from Terracon on Brownfield Grant EPA

Walker County received a $500,000 Brownficld Assessment Grant from the EPA, as
presented by Dallas Whitmill of the Chattanooga Environmental Department. The
purpose of this four-year grant, which began in August 2022 and concludes in September
2026, is to assess blighted properties for both petroleum and hazardous chemical
constituents and facilitate their reuse. The grant tasks include Brownfield site
identification, Phase I/l Environmental Site Assessments, Remediation & Reuse
Planning, community outreach, and programmatic support.

The assessment covered four distinct sites within Walker County.

Site 1: Former Texaco Bulk Plant, LaFayette, GA
Site 2: Former Dry Cleaner, LaFayette, GA

Site 3: Former Crystal Springs, Chickamauga, GA
Site 4: Peerless Mill Site, Rossville, GA

X. Public Hearing - Planning & Zoning:

Per Walker County Code Chapter 22-109(c), all comments concerning a proposed zoning decision under
consideration by the Board of Commissioners shall be in writing prior to the commencement of the
hearing. The only exception will be the applicant who has filed the zoning request. The applicant shall be
allowed five minutes to address the Board, unless the Board allows additional time.

a. Chairwoman Teems moved to suspend the rules regarding public hearings on
planning and zoning matters. She believes in-person public comment is necessary
for these issues and will instruct staff to begin amending the code to allow it. A
motion to allocate a maximum of ten minutes for public comment, both in favor
and against each planning item. If multiple individuals wish to speak, they will
need to share this allotted time.

b. Commissioner Hart seconded the motion.

c. No discussion.

d. 4 ayes, 0 nays. Motion approved

Subject to the Board's approval, the two Development Authority requests and the three Pruett
rezone quests will be considered as grouped items due to adjoining map & parcel numbers.

1.

Walker County Development Authority: Requests a rezone from A-1
(Agricultural) to I (Industrial) for property located at 157 Glass Road LaFayette,
GA. 30728. Tax map & parcel number 0-320-03.(Planning Commission
recommended this rezone be denied)

Walker County Development Authority: Requests a rezone from A-1
(Agricultural) to I (Industrial) for property located at 0 Glass Road LaFayette, GA.



30728. Tax map & parcel number 0-320-037. (Planning Commission recommended
this rezone be denied)

a. The Walker County Development Authority, represented by Chairman Andy
Amold and Executive Director Stephanie Watkins, presented a proposal to the
board to expand the existing industrial park. This expansion involves two parcels
adjacent to the approximately 100 acres purchased in October 2022. The goal is to
attract new and facilitate the growth of current industries, thereby creating jobs in
Walker County. While the land is currently zoned Agricultural, the increased
industrial activity necessitates a rezoning to Industrial. The Development
Authority emphasized their careful consideration of surrounding areas to ensure
community compatibility and noted they have not pursued heavy industrial
projects for the Walker County Business Park. They highlighted the significant
potential for Walker County's economic growth due to the limited availability of
industrially zoned land in the region with readily accessible utilities, including
fiber and rail. They urged recognition of the need to foster growth and enhance
the job and tax base within the community.

b. Commissioner Hart commented on one concern being traffic on Glass road.
Inquired where main, heavy truck traffic would go through. Vehicle traffic takes a
straight turn off Hwy 27th and uses the existing road to Industrial Park. Mr. Hart
also asked about buffer size and Ms. Watkins advised that a minimum 50 foot
buffer between residential and industrial, but they would be open to work with the
planning commission on buffer area.

c. Commissioner Askew asked about the type of industry they were looking to
recruit.

d. Stephanie Watkins responded they were only looking at light industrial, no heavy
industrial would be considered.

e. Walker County resident of 79 years and Chair of the Noble Neighborhood
Community Association, David Boyle, presented a petition concerning the
proposed rezoning of Glass Road from Agricultural to Industrial. He respectfully
requested that the Board of Commissioners deny the Walker County Development
Authority's application for industrial rezoning. Mr. Boyle stated that the
community values its rural character, despite the presence of existing small
businesses and industries, including the Audia Plant, along US Hwy 27. He
emphasized the ongoing growth of the Noble area and the community's desire to
preserve its neighborhood's current footprint.

f. Stacy White, a resident of Glass Road whose property borders the rezoning area,
presented a petition with 200 signatures opposing the change. Community
concerns include increased noise, light, water, and soil pollution, as well as
decreased property values and loss of tranquility. Ms. White requested a clear
definition of light versus heavy industrial zoning for the community.

g. Diane Cousincao of Glass Road opposes the rezoning request due to potential
negative impacts on property values and quality of life from construction and the
facility's operation. Community concerns include construction duration, facility
operation, setbacks and buffers for property value and enjoyment, noise
abatement, and future emissions from construction.

3. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-2
(Residential) for property located at 0 Kay Conley Road, Rock Spring, GA. 30739.

Tax map & parcel number 0-326-3-054. (Planning Commission recommended this
rezone be approved).

4. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-2
(Residential) for property located at 0 Kay Conley Road, Rock Spring, GA. 307309.
Tax map & parcel number 0-326-3-055. (Planning Commission recommended this
rezone be approved).

5. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-2
(Residential) for property located at 0 Kay Conley Road, Rock Spring, GA. 30739.



Tax map & parcel number 0-326-3-056. (Planning Commission recommended this
rezone be approved).
a. No one in attendance to speak on the rezone requests for Robert & Carlene Pruett.

XI. Public Comment:

1.

Randy Pittman expressed gratitude to the Walker County community for their support of
the Dress for Success initiative at Ridgeland High School. This collective effort
guaranteed that all graduating students had access to caps, gowns, and any necessary
formal attire for their graduation ceremony.

David Boyle expressed his appreciation to the Board of Commissioners for their work,
stating his belief that they prioritize the community's interests. Mr. Boyle feels the county
is experiencing positive growth, citing the development of cultural resources and
increasing tourism, and he expressed gratitude for their hard work.

Ned Yates raised concerns with the Board regarding the $472,000 purchase of two Class
8 Mack trucks, arguing it deviated from best practices. He pointed out a violation of
Walker County's enabling act, specifically Section 12 concerning sealed bids for
purchases exceeding $100,000. Referencing the April meeting, Yates reminded the Board
of proposed alternative vehicles with different ratings. He stated that Commissioner
Blakemore independently sought pricing for the Mack trucks without providing any
breakdown, specifications, or discussion. Yates further contended that the county
acquired an unusable third-axle truck, noting that a comparable Peterbilt truck in the
same class was available for $100,000 less.

Melissa Hulsey raised concerns regarding the Rushton financial presentation for the 2024
Walker County audit. She pointed out that page 105 of the audit indicated a lack of proper
segregation of duties in the recording, distribution, and reconciliation of cash accounts
and other operational functions across county departments, component units, and
constitutional offices. This deficiency, also noted in the 2022 and 2023 audits with
warnings of potential fraud risk, increases the county's vulnerability to financial loss. Ms.
Hulsey illustrated the differences between regular and forensic audits and mentioned
being told a forensic audit was deemed too costly by the board, though she believes it
would reveal operational inefficiencies.

. Linda Owens, residing on Wind Trail near the Industrial Park, addressed the

commissioners, stating that the proposed 50-foot buffer is insufficient. She expressed
concern that existing noise and light pollution from the Audia Plant would worsen with
further industrial development. Increased railroad usage and road traffic were also cited
as potential negative impacts. Owens conveyed her dissatisfaction with the industrial
park, arguing it is not a suitable addition to the community.

Robert Stultz expressed his appreciation for the Board of Commissioners' excellent work
and the dedication of everyone involved. Stultz also commented on Melissa Hulsey's
departure, stating he would have liked to see a debate between her and Mr. Jarrard, in
which he believed Ms. Hulsey would have fared poorly.

The Women Veterans of Walker County Post 339 will host a Women Veterans
Recognition Program on June 12th at 6:00 p.m.in LaFayette. Dinner will be served, and
a guest speaker will be present. All women veterans are welcome to attend this event, as
announced by Tina Groce.

Ms. Groce also quoted information found on Google concerning weight limits on Georgia
roadways. On State routes, the maximum gross weight for a three-axle truck is 61,000
Ibs. The federal bridge formula also confirms the permissibility of three-axle trucks in
Georgia. State regulations govern the formula, which sets maximum weight limits



XII.

according to the number of axles and the distance between them.

Tina inquired about the volume of Open Record Requests (ORRs) and the average time
spent on each. Chairwoman Teems directed County Clerk Lisa Richardson to respond.
Ms. Richardson reported approximately 90 ORRs had been received. She explained that
each ORR requires immediate attention, taking precedence over other duties. The
estimated average time per ORR is 45 minutes. If the time exceeds 15 minutes, the
requester could be charged at the hourly rate of the lowest-paid staff member capable of
fulfilling the request.

Lifelong Walker County resident Jim Spurgeon, who owns property near the Industrial
Plant with well water, expressed concern about the potential impact of increased industry
on his water supply. He purchased the property for its rural setting in the 1970s and is
concerned for his property value and change of the rural landscape.

Consent Agenda:

The Consent Agenda is a special rule of order providing for non-controversial matters to be
considered in gross or without debate or amendment. Should a Board member object to any item
being in the Consent Agenda, it is restored to the place it would have otherwise been considered
on the regular agenda.

Resolution R-031-25 to use Opioid Settlement Funds for Unified in Recovery

Resolution R-032-25 to use Opioid Settlement Funds for Walker County Sheriff’s
Office
a. Chairwoman Teems explained that the opium settlement funds come from a
national settlement and we are the fiduciary agent for these funds. One of the
other ways we have utilized these funds already is to equip every county building
with Narcan. This will help support individuals in recovery and assist those who
are transitioning out of jail as they prepare to reenter society.
b. Commissioner Hart made the motion to approve both resolutions
¢. Commissioner Wilson scconded the motion.
No discussion required.
e. 4 ayes 0 nays. Both resolutions were approved.

XIII. New Business:

1. Resolution R-033-25 to re-appoint Jamie Bennett to the Board of Assessors

a. Jamic Bennett was previously appointed, but the training required to serve was
not offered during his probationary period. The training is now available and Mr.
Bennett is ready to get started.

Commissioner Wilson made a motion to re-appoint Mr. Bennet

Scconded by Commissioner Hart

No further discussion

4 ayes, 0 nays. Unanimous approval to reappoint Mr. Bennett

o oo o

2. Resolution R-034-25 to Award a Contract for the 2025-2026 Road Paving List

a. The County received four sealed bids for our 2025-2026 road paving list. 1'd like
to recognize Carlen Bowers to answer any questions the Board might have about
the proposals before we recommend a contractor.

b. Commissioner Hart made a motion to go with CW Matthews as they are the
lowest bidder by $500,000.00 and they are a reputable contractor in the State.

c. Seconded by Commissioner Blakemore

d. No further discussion

e. 4 ayes, 0 nays to award contract to CW Matthews the paving bid

3. Resolution R-035-25 to Award a Contract for Lofton Lane Bridge Repairs.



a. A citizen report with safety concerns with the bridge on Lofton Lane resulted in
the County requesting a GDOT safety inspection. GDOT discovered several
issues and ordered we make emergency repairs. The County closed the bridge
and began working to address those issues. The county received two sealed bids,
with Hasbun Construction presenting the low bid.

b. Commissioner Askew made a motion to accept the low bid of Hasbun
Construction

¢. Seconded by Commissioner Hart

d. No further discussion
4 ayes, 0 nays Hasbun Construction awarded bid.

4. Resolution R-036-25 to Accept Terms and Conditions of the Georgia Department of
Natural Resources for a Recreational Trails Program Project
a. Walker County received a $200,000 grant from Georgia's Recreational Trails
Program to resurface the trail at the Civic Center, requiring an $80,000 county
match. Joe Legge, Director of Communication and Community Developments,
explained that this is the third phasc of the Walker County Civic Center Project,
which aims to develop the location into a community recreational asset. Previous
phases included an inclusive playground and a grant for its expansion and
pickleball courts. The resurfacing will utilize asphalt or bonded rubber, materials
chosen for their low maintenance requirements.
b. Commissioner Hart asked what surface was going to be used. Mr. Legge
responded they are looking at a bonded rubber surface or asphalt.
¢. Commissioner Wilson asked if this is approved, has an REP been awarded?
Mr. Legge responded that once Resolution approved he would get the RFP’s
together to send out for bid.

B

¢. Motion to accept terms and conditions by Commissioner Askew
f.  Seconded by Commissioner Blakemore

g. No further discussion

h. 4 ayes, 0 nays. Resolution Approved

5. Resolution R-037-25 Authorizing and Approving the Fifth Amendment to the Pension
Plan for Employees of Walker County, Georgia.

a. This action will release the funds/plan, enabling retroactive funding to the
employee portfolio's start date. Upon the board's approval of this amendment,
eligible individuals can immediately proceed with filing for retirement.

b. Angic made motion to unfreeze, Hart seconded
Commissioner Hart inquired if the plan had been frozen in 2013, which Chair
Teems verified. Mr. Hart stated that this would revert the funding to the 2013
level and initiate a new cycle for the employees, a point also confirmed by Chair
Teems.

d. 4 ayes, 0 nays, Resolution approved.

6. Approval of the Georgia Opioid Crisis Abatement Trust Grant to LMJC Accountability
Courts.

a. Chairwoman Teems explained that we are the fiduciary agency we are asked to

accept the funds from this new portion of the opioid settlement.

b. The Accountability Courts received $387,000.00 from the state’s portion of the
opioid settlement and the county needs to oversee these funds at our banking
institution.

Chairwoman Teems made motion to accept the new funds
Seconded by Commissioner Blakemore

No further discussion

4 ayes, 0 nays, Funds accepted.

=0 a0

7. Purchase Order 2025-00001629 for $230,665.60 to Yancy Bros Co. for buy-out of
lease for D4 Caterpillar Track Dozer at landfill.



o oo g

Director Paine Gily of the landfill entered into a rent-to-own agreement with
Yancy Bros for a six-month low-profile dozer suitable for slopes and smaller
tasks, including a forestry package and potential for cross-utilization. Following
the expiration of extensions to this contract, the Commissioners are now being
asked to decide whether to purchase the equipment or forfeit the $82,220.00
already paid under the lease. Of the $280,647.00 original cost, approximately
$50,000.00 in rent payments can be applied to the purchase. This would result in a
final buyout price of $230,665.60.

Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve

Seconded by Commissioner Wilson

No Discussion.

4 ayes, 0 nays to purchase dozer

8. Walker County Development Authority: Requests a rezone from A-1 (Agricultural) to
I (Industrial) for property located at 157 Glass Road LaFayette, GA. 30728. Tax map &
parcel number 0-320-036.(Planning Commission recommended this rezone be denied)

9. Walker County Development Authority: Requests a rezone from A-1 (Agricultural) to
I (Industrial) for property located at 0 Glass Road LaFayette, GA. 30728. Tax map &
parcel number 0-320-037. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be denied)

a.

g.

Tax map & parcel number 0-320-036 and 0-320-037 voted on together due to
parcels connected.

Commissioner Hart made a motion to table for 1 month to allow data to be
reviewed and gathered. Due to its location next to the Industrial Park it fits that
use but wants to pause and look at all the aspects from the surrounding residents.
Second motion by Commissioner Blakemore

Commissioner Askew acknowledged residents' concerns about rezoning and
stated he is willing to reconsider and listen to their feedback. However, he
cautioned that the land in question will likely not remain a farm and could
potentially be used for housing or industrial development. He agreed to table the
rezoning discussion for a later time.

Commissioner Wilson states that it is off of a State Hwy which is where you
would want industrial to be. The heavy tratfic would be on a state route and not
on county roads.

No further discussion, table for one month until June meeting.

4 ayes, 0 nays, Rezoning Tabled until June 5th meeting

10. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-2
(Residential) for property located at 0 Kay Conley Road, Rock Spring, GA. 30739. Tax
map & parcel number 0-326-3-054. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be

approved).

I1. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-2
(Residential) for property located at 0 Kay Conley Road, Rock Spring, GA. 30739. Tax
map & parcel number 0-326-3-055. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be

approved).

12. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-2
(Residential) for property located at 0 Kay Conley Road, Rock Spring, GA. 30739. Tax
map & parcel number 0-326-3-056. (Planning Commission recommended this rezone be

approved)

2 /e

Parcels 0-326-3-054/0-326-3-055/0-326-3-057 Contingent and voted on together
Motion to approve rezone from Commissioner Hart

Scconded by Commissioner Askew

No Discussion

4 ayes, 0 nays. Rezone approved



XV. Commissioner Comments:

l. Commissioner Blakemore concluded the meeting by discussing the purchase of a dump
truck. Drawing on his extensive experience, he mentioned working with the Road
Department for 7.5 years after high school, obtaining his CDL through Walker County,
and operating various county-owned equipment like tandem and single axle trucks and
snow plows. He further noted his family business background, which includes over a
million logged miles driving dump trucks and tractor trailers. Commissioner Blakemore
stated he had requested quotes and specifications for a Class 8 truck with a high lift gate
from the Road Department, but this was not completed. In his assessment, the Mack
Truck was the most suitable option for Walker County, as they were readily available.

2. Commissioner Askew expressed gratitude for the public's involvement, noting that many
Jurisdictions lack such participation. He feels fortunate that residents attend meetings to
discuss, debate, and examine information to aid in sound decision-making. He reiterated
his appreciation for everyone's attendance and encouraged their continued engagement in
local government.

Commissioner Askew expressed gratitude to Carlen Bowers, the Road Department
Director, for his work in compiling bids for the paving project and ensuring a competitive
RFP process. Accepting the lowest bid will result in an estimated savings of nearly
$500,000 for the county, demonstrating due diligence and fiscal responsibility for the
citizens.

3. Commissioner Hart highlighted upcoming spring events: the Downtown LaFayette
Farmers Market on Saturdays, the Music on Main/Music at Mars concert serics beginning
May 16th, and the Honeybee Festival on May 31st. The community is encouraged to
support the Honey Bee Festival on May 30th and 31st, which will feature vendors, music,
and various activities.

Commissioner Wilson expressed his gratitude to all hardworking county employees. He
also thanked Carlen Bowers for compiling road and paving quotes. He concluded by
expressing appreciation to everyone present and wishing them safety.

XVI. Executive Session:

Chairwoman Teems called an Executive Session at 7:58 p.m.
a. Chairwoman Teems made a motion for Executive Session
b. Scconded by Commissioner Askew
c. No Discussion
d. 4 ayes, 0 nays to approve Executive Session

XVI. Adjournment:

No actions taken in the Executive Session and with no further business on the agenda,
Chairwoman Teems adjourned the meeting at 8:10 P.M.

Angela Teems Date
Chairwoman/CEO
Walker County Georgia

Minutes prepared by: Walker County County Clerk, Lisa Richardson



5/1/25, 3:11 PM Regular Scheduled Board of Commissioners Meeting - Google Docs

Reqular Scheduled Board of Commissioners Meeting

Walker County Annex lll

May 1. 2025
6:00 PM
Roll Call Present/Absent
Commissioner Blakemore Present
Commissioner Askew Present
Chairwoman Teems Present
Commissioner Hart Present
Commissioner Wilson Present

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1W4QNIPhLvmINRI7JjNgt2D T 1t5pdROWs9ZHS05Nxu3w/edit?tab=t.0 12



5/1/25, 3:13 PM Regular Scheduled Board of Commissioners Meeting - Google Docs

Sign In Sheet

Regular Scheduled Board of Commissioners Meeting

May 1, 2025

6:00 PM

Name Address

Q}\?sz tfu ik i Slloarmomd O Char

A U ?H”fw«m EUSS EW)
N CLU\O num/l o LQCAL]‘?C

/ R)( 1K) O G 19 o~ A 075 T
Deaty (o,

/74//-47‘"’ _2 ,'///'yﬁ—r/ﬁ —

Vol gz~ 2, Cﬂw% .
B A=
(e Dl 71 L e Sl is
Y AdX %MQ - 1 AQyc RWC - (ATHETE

///AZ (S G ey (AN <

P /y,r,,./ A%y,

=ik 1% T,
4 mt/%/ = .7,//7%7/\ N3t Lt Yo Y

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1W4QNSPhLvmINRS7JjNgt2D T 1t5pdROWs9ZHS05Nxu3w/edit?tab=t.0



5/1/25, 3:13 PM Regular Scheduled Board of Commissioners Meeting - Google Docs

7( 6/&5} 2 d
(opifet s (ctontvCr
% M 92/ ? 6 rﬁza.-«w //j/

\Q\M\Jé C@JS{MA “&DS(JK 7’37 G(ASS ipU/]\} U\\D\\(C:ZQW
\'_( /cxn[é?*"f 0Lf

LY R bl
/~£4,<J;4~ Ay 4;,754‘@2(,@ 1) 62@5:3 [ fj / (5,}2&4;?;4’ é%/ﬁ\

ﬁ}’\ﬁ AL _>T")/“;_H5, 202 Y ,‘J/;;-?j(pﬁ",_: Jis T]m)c_ 3 L /L F_T_gg

A erine Lc)mplamg, 505 Lyan  Tval LaCayete G4

M0 0N cualiC
Q ’\Q)\ W0t
v‘t/,w\ %{ U\J\Mff 3 L;\‘m\ |
( i;’\ mLu J/)\ﬂfu{{ﬂp\ﬁ/buj |
wm A
!j ’! Q—Lﬁﬁ‘ " ( m (ﬂf At s D
NeED C/f/f’%/»? /Qm#m\ [
1\\”} )\ﬁabw.m. ¢ LJ iy e
_C,«zf;ﬁ wzz,f R)
E—m-ﬂ;% /[’ //7/(% “‘5‘1{/6« ax _;
-

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1W4QNIPhLVvmMINR97JjNgt2D T 1t5pdROWs9ZHS05Nxu3w/edit?tab=t.0 3/4



Walker County Planning Commission
Minutes

May 15, 2025
Walker County Civic Center
6:00 PM

ATTENDEES:

Planning Commission Members Walker County Planning Staff

Cindy Askew Jon Pursley, Planning Director

Randy Pittman Kristy Parker, Planning Commission Secretary
Will Ingram

John Morehouse

Stan Porter

Jon Hentz

Todd Holt

Rob Walthour

I. CALL TO ORDER:

Chairman Pittman called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

II. ROLL CALL:

ITI. READING & APPROVAL OF APRIL 17, 2025 MEETING MINUTES:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to approve the April 17th minutes. Will Ingram made a motion to
approve the minutes as is. Stan Porter seconded the motion to approve. The vote to approve was unanimous.
Motion to approve carried.

IV. MOTION TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to open the public hearing. John Morehouse made a motion to
open the public hearing. Todd Holt seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The motion to open the
public hearing carried.



Walker County
Planning Commission Meeting

May 15, 2025
6:00 P.M.
Walker County Civic Center

AGENDA

L CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

IIIl.  READING AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR APRIL 17,2025 MEETING

IV.  MOTION TO OPEN PUBLIC HEARING:

V. NEW BUSINESS:
A. REZONE:

1. Garfield Dickson: Requests a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-1 (Residential) for property located at 154
Chattanooga Valley Road Flintstone, GA. 30725. Tax map & parcel number 0-079-028.

2. Wanda Darlene Myers: Requests a partial rezone from R-2 (Residential) to C-1 (Commercial) for property
located at 705 Park City Road Rossville, GA. 30741. Tax map & parcel number 0-191-093.

B. CONDITIONAL USE VARIANCE:

1. Jaxen Abbasi: Requests a conditional use variance to operate a dog kennel/boarding business out of her
residence located at 609 Holly Drive Rossville, GA. 30741. Tax map & parcel number 0-190-048.

VI. MOTION TO CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING:

VII. MOTION TO GO INTO NEW BUSINESS:

A. Garfield Dickson
B. Wanda Darlene Myers
C. Jaxen Abbasi

VIII: ADJOURNMENT:



V. PUBLIC HEARING:

New Business:

1.Garfield Dickson: Chairman Pittman asked if Mr. Dickson was present. Garfield Dickson came forward and
stated that he no longer ran a business out of the building and that when it is passed along to his children and
grandchildren it would be easier to deal with if it was zoned residential. Will Ingram asked Mr. Dickson how
large the property was, and he stated about five eights of an acre. Will Ingram asked if the building was just
empty and Mr. Dickson said that he just stores some of his dad’s antique cars in it. Todd Holt asked Mr.
Dickson if he had any plans for it and he said no. Chairman Pittman asked if anyone else had any questions and
there were none.

2. Wanda Darlene Myers: Chairman Pittman asked if anyone was present for Ms. Myers. Mr. Tim Woodall
came forward and stated that he was her realtor and would be representing her. He stated that the property was
split up into three locations and that the larger piece seems like a good spot for a gas station. He said that there
was a church across from Park City Road and that most gas stations sell alcoholic beverages and that they may
have to arrange the building so it would meet the 300 feet door to door setback. Kristy Parker asked if the only
section that they wanted the rezone for was the larger piece between Tayor Street and Hwy 2 and Mr. Woodall
said yes. Jon Pursley explained that across Hwy 2 was all commercial. Chairman Pittman stated that the
Planning Commission would not have any say in if alcohol would be allowed at that location or not because that
would have to be approved by the Beverage Board. Will Ingram stated that the Comprehensive Plan allows for
commercial but discourages franchise corporate architecture designs. Has the buyer looked at doing something
other than the “gas station” look? Mr. Woodall stated that if the buyer wanted to build a gas station then it
would look like a gas station. John Morehouse stated that he went by the property, and it looks very steep going
up the hill and Mr. Woodall stated that it does get flatter at the top. Mr. Woodall stated that the house on the
property is in really bad shape. Jon Pursely said that Codes had been talking to the owner about the house and
agreed that it was in bad shape. Cindy Askew asked if there would be provisions put in place to have a fence or
something to divide that residential part from the commercial due to the house being next door. Mr. Woodall
stated that they have not gotten that far in the process yet. Cindy Askew also brought up that she felt like it
would be a good idea to only have one entrance coming off Park City Road and not use Taylor Street as a
second entrance. Jon Pursley brought up that the county may look at requiring the buyer to work with the Road
Department in making sure the entrance is satisfactory for more traffic.

3. Jaxen Abbasi: Chairman Pittman stated that there was a couple of people that signed up to speak. Mr.
Michael Brown came forward and stated that he was in opposition of this request. He was concerned about the
impact it would have on the neighborhood. He said that he felt like she had already made an impact on the
neighborhood by building a privacy fence. He stated that none of the other properties have a fence and that was
what he liked about the area. He was also concerned about the traffic that uses Holly Drive. Ms. Kristin
Rodriguz came forward and stated that she lives right beside this property. She is concerned because she has
small children and is afraid that they could get loose and possibly bite them. She said she was also concerned
about the barking and extra traffic on the road. Chairman Pittman then called Ms. Abbasi up and she read a
letter that she wrote about where she had her last kennel. She stated that drop off and pick up would be by
appointment only and that most of the dogs are elderly. She said that the dogs would never be out unless she
was outside with them and if they were to start backing they would be taken back in. Jon Pursley stated that the
Board had a letter in front of them from our Animal Control Director Bailey Clements and that she had been to



the property and talked to the Department of Ag and stated that she would feel comfortable with the Board
granting this variance. Stan Porter asked if this property was the same size as where she previously had her
kennel and she stated that property was a little more rural. Cindy Askew asked if she would be on site at all
times and she said yes unless she had to run an errand and then all the animals would be inside.

VII: MOTION TO CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to close the public hearing. Stan Porter made a motion to close
the public hearing. Rob Walthour seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The motion to close the
public hearing carried.

VIII: MOTION TO OPEN NEW BUSINESS:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to open the new business. Ohn Morehouse made a motion to
open new business. Will Ingram seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The motion to open new
business carried.

IX: NEW BUSINESS:

L. Garfield Dickson: Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion. John Morehose made a motion to approve
the rezone. Stan Porter seconded the motion to approve. The vote was unanimous. The motion to approve
carried.

2. Wanda Darlene Myers: Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion. Stan Porter made a motion to
approve with the condtions that a fence or landscaping be put up on the residentail side of the property and that
the entrance design be approved by the Road Superintendent. Todd Holt seconded the motion to approve with
conditions. The vote was unanimous. The motion to approve with conditions carried.

3. Jaxen Abbasi: Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion. Will Ingram made a motion to deny due to the
proximity of the neighboring houses. Todd Holt seconded the motion to deny. The motion to deny was
unanimous with Rob Walthour abstaining from the vote. The motion to deny carried.



XIV: ADJOURNMENT:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to adjorn. Rob Walthour made a motion to adjorn. Stan Porter
seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. Motion to adjoin carried.

Date Submitted: Planning Commission Chairman

Date Submitted: Planning Commission Secretary

Date Submitted: Planning Commission Director



LOOKG
V) e 'i Wanda Darlene Myers
Garfield Dickson F?“’ e
Y, K ﬁ@:ﬁw Walker County Roads
/ ;," _w._!g‘ &7 EORGIA

WALKER COUNTY, G

) Vi e
é ; ?}/éf ﬁ?}@ ) ..laxen Abbasi e

7

P AL E Rk +
a3 G Y
F AT




Walker County Planning Commission

Minutes
April 17,2025
Walker County Civic Center
6:00 PM
ATTENDEES:
Planning Commission Members Walker County Planning Staff
Cindy Askew Jon Pursley, Planning Director
Randy Pittman Kristy Parker, Planning Commission Secretary
Will Ingram
John Morehouse
Stan Porter
Jon Hentz

I. CALL TO ORDER:

Chairman Pittman called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

II. ROLL CALL:

III. ELECTION OF NEW VICE CHAIRPERSON:

Chairman Pittman stated that since he had been appointed the new Chairman that the Board would need to elect
anew Vice Chairperson. Chairman Pittman made a motion to elect Cindy Askew for the 2025 Vice
Chairperson. John Morehouse seconded the motion for Cindy Askew as the new Vice Chairwoman. The vote
was unanimous. The motion carried.

IV. READING & APPROVAL OF MARCH 20,2025 MEETING MINUTES:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to approve the March 20th minutes. Wil Ingram made a motion
to approve the minutes as is. Stan Porter seconded the motion to approve. The vote to approve was unanimous.
Motion to approve carried.



V. MOTION TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to open the public hearing. John Morehouse made a motion to
open the public hearing. Will Ingram seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The motion to open the
public hearing carried.

VI. PUBLIC HEARING:

New Business;

1.Walker County Development Authority: Chairman Pittman stated that the Development Authority was
requesting two rezones that were beside each other so we would hear both at the same time. He asked if
someone was present to represent these rezones. Stephanie Watkins with the Walker County Develo pment
Authority came forward and stated that they were requesting these rezones from the current zone to industrial to
expand the existing Industrial Park. Jon Pursley stated that if you look at the current comprehensive plan the
area does show future industrial use. Chairman Pittman asked when the Development Authority purchased these
properties and Ms. Watkins stated in October 2022. Cindy Askew asked if there was a reason for the expansion.
Ms. Watkins said that when they bought the property the intent was to expand the current park, and they have
had some interest from different companies for the site. Jon Hentz asked what type of industrial interest they
had. Ms. Watkins said it has just been different ones. Will Ingram asked how large the first tract was. Ms.
Watkins stated that both tract combined would be one hundred acres. Will Ingram asked if they plan on putting
up some type of buffers and Ms. Watkins said they would be looking at adding buffers. Cindy Askew asked if
there was consideration of using the property as agricultural until something was built and Ms. Watkins said yes
that someone currently cuts it for hay. Ms. Askew asked about where the entrance would be, and Ms. Watkins
said that the main entrance was coming off at Hwy 27. Ms. Askew said there would not be access off Glass
Road and Ms. Watkins said not for industrial trucks. Chairman Pittman had the list of names that signed up to
speak and called Diane Hudson up. Ms. Hudson came forward and stated that she lives on Glass Road and is not
in favor of this rezone because she thinks it will have a negative impact on the area. She was concerned about
the setbacks and buffers. She also wanted to know what the plans were for noise and light pollution. Ms.
Hudson was also concerned about the hazardous material that some plants could have along with traffic and the
number of railcars that Audia currently has. James Spurgeon came forward and stated that he bought his
property for the view and does not want to look at an industrial plant. He also had concerns about the well and
ground water and the fact that there is already a noise nuisance coming from Audia. Linda Owens came forward
and spoke next and her concerns were also about the noise, water and toxic chemicals that mi ght come with new
plants. Olivia White came forward and stated that the way their property sits that there would be no way to have
a buffer so that they would not see any new plants. J eremy White came up and stated that he bought his
property because it was in a good location for his physical and mental health due to his military background. He
stated that due to the noise from when the reenactment that took place on the industrial property he had to leave
his house and that they have filed noise complaints on Audia regarding their noise. He spoke on his concerns
also about the noise, lights and odor from the current plant. Jon Pursley talked about how there would be
guidelines that would have to be met and that any hazardous plants would have to meet special guidelines from
the state and would monitor any water issues. Lori Johnson asked if she could speak because she came in a little
late and did not sign the form. She stated that she too was concerned about the lights and noise and that they
were already not using all the land that was zoned industrial now so why rezone more. Jon Hentz asked if the
City of LaFayette Mayor Andy Arnold who is part of the Development Authority could give her an explanation



on her question about rezoning more property. Mr. Arnold stated that they have many businesses that reach out
to them for specific information and that just because there is nothing there now does not mean that they are not
working with businesses to locate in the old part of the park along with the new part.

2. Robert and Carlene Pruett: Chairman Pittman stated that they were asking for rezones for three parcels
side by side so the Board would hear all these at one time. Chairman Pittman asked if there was anyone present
for the Pruett’s. Nathan Neal came forward and stated that he is looking at purchasing the property from the
Pruett’s if the rezone passes and building residential structures. Stan Porter asked if it would be rentals and Mr.
Neal said it would be multi-family structures. Cindy Askew brought up the drainage area through the property
and Mr. Neal stated that was one reason they were buying all three parcels so there would be more room. Jon
Hentz stated that he feels like the rezone would be good, but he would like to see a vertical plan. He said that
after the rezone there is no one that reviews any type of vertical plans. Jon Pursley stated that the Planning
Office does the inspections and makes sure it meets the current codes, but the County does not have a say in
what a structure looks like. Mr. Hentz said he has a problem with that, Mr. Pursley stated that right now the
Overlay District was the only area in the County that has guidelines on what the structure looks like.

VII: MOTION TO CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to close the public hearing. John Morehouse made a motion to
close the public hearing. Will Ingram seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The motion to close the
public hearing carried.

VIII: MOTION TO OPEN NEW BUSINESS:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to open the new business. Stan Porter made a motion to open
new business. Cindy Askew seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The motion to open new business
carried.

IX: NEW BUSINESS:

1. Walker County Development Authority: Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion. Cindy Askew
made a motion to deny due to the way the land lays and the fact that the existing industrial park is already not
being utilized. Jon Hentz seconded the motion to deny. The vote was unanimous. The motion to deny carried.

2. Robert & Carlene Pruett: Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion on these rezones. Stan Porter
made a motion to approve. John Morehouse seconded the motion to approve. Will Ingram abstained from the
vote. The vote was unanimous. The motion to approve carried.



XIV: ADJOURNMENT:

Chairman Pittman asked if there was a motion to adjorn. Stan Porter made a motion to adjorn. Will Ingram
seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. Motion to adjoin carried.

Date Submitted: Planning Commission Chairman

Date Submitted: Planning Commission Secretary

Date Submitted: Planning Commission Director



Walker County Planning Office

Rezong, Conditional Uss Varlaacs & Variance Appliation

r&:.:mnc ElConditional Use ¥arianse L Varianes

f Current Zoning: Requested Change:
' »
(- At
Piap & Parcel Date Fea:
L 0-679-cay | | 750

Applicant/Owiner & Phon::[ :"ﬁ::l D:ﬁ eld f'x-) el Tor 42 34134503
Steret Name & tumber: |5 L] C}\#Ifﬁwu} A Uﬁl’ﬂni 2],

Mailing Address: ; Dape.

City, Szote, Zip Code: rf-:!' ) 71"; ?‘o,ue/, (;174 30925_
Request: Qr‘"?mm /D K-

PLANNING COMPUSIION RECOMMENDATION:

O APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

7 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[ TARLED

O DEMIAL

BOAEN OF COMLISS? QPERS FIMSY DECISION:

[Ci APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

[0 APPROVED WITH COMNMTIONS

[3 TABLED

] DEMAL

The following dlzcloziers Is ¢oquaine of the applizaci(z) by Sactian 34674 ol OL.G.A The tallawing & for
diszluzare purposes only and does wat divqualify th pestetan,

Wi the past two yeezs, have you made eilier campaign conteibutions totaling $250.60 or moce andfes
gven giies haviig valur of $250.07 co meee i @ focel poverament official who ‘will b raspoailide for
mzking a reconsmuerlntion or Secizion oa the applicnilon? YES O MO {X. If YZ5, then on & Separuls pag,
please furzish the fallewing informatien;

&) The came of the local poveminiect oficizl{s) to whom cash cearibulion ce &l was mada

A) Tear total Collur am2ant(s} of eacd) carnpuign musde by the applazans ta el Jovol offleial dusing the
e years immediately preeading e Glling of the application.

C) Anenimaration and desceislion of ezch gl hautng value of $250,00 or more mads Iy gl
apphizant 1e each lacal goverames: official within the PRSE L yeers,

Slgnatwre of Applicent/Ownas;

DATE



WALKER COUNTY Owner: Garfield Dickson
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

AGENDA ITEM
Petitioner: same

Location of 154 Chattanooga Valley Road
Property: Flintstone, GA. 30725

Tax map & parcel number 0-079-028

PC Meeting Date: 5/15/2025
| |

Present Zoning: | C-1 (Commercial)

APPLICANT’S INTENT: Requesting a rezone from C-1 (Commercial) to R-1
(Residential). The business closed down and wants
property residential.

DETAILS OF REQUEST: The Comprehensive Plan shows
Greenspace/Conservation Area and would meet the
future land use better than currently zoned.

Projected Area:




Zoning Map:




Future Land Use Map:

Roads ~ —+— Railroads . Lukes & Ponds |r_-__:j Crossroad Conununity
——— Highways Rivers & Streams L..:! City Linrits
Clraracter Arcas
- Agtivity Center - Dawntown Mived Use \_ﬁ' Historic Mill Redevelopment Area - Resicdential Redeveloporent Areu
Adavily Destination District Estare Resldennal L Iedustenal Raral Resulential
Agniculture / Forestry m. Fairylird Proper Loekout Mountan: Nesghlborkood Selzoul
Airport Guitewsiy Corridor Ml Vitlage Town Center
County Stebuerlan Greenspare // Conservanon Ara Missionary Ridge Resufential Tradinonal Neighbwrhood

Downtown Busimess Didrict Historic Donattown Mived Use



2022-2032 Walker County Joint Comprehensive Plan

Figure 49, Old Mineral Springs Road

Suggested Development Strategy:

Greenspace/Conservation: Chickamauga,
LaFayette, and Walker County

Description:  These are undeveloped or sparsely
developed lands more suitable for environmental
protections, e.0. scenic views, steep slopes where
development unsustainable, floodplains, wetlands, and
wildlife management arcas. Example locations within
Walker County are Crockford-Pigean Mountain Wildlife
Management Areas, Johns Mountain  Wildlife
Management Areq, Lula Land Trust, and Zahnd Wildlife
Management Area.

1. Promote passive-use tourism and recreational activities, e.g. hiking, biking, hunting, and fishing.

I

Investin infrastruciure that promotes recreational activities in hiking, biking, hunting, and fishing.

3. When appropriate, apply for and promote the purchasing of conservation easements.

&

5. Publicinvestments in park miaintenance.

Land uses:
* Parks/Recreation/Conservation

Public investments in new park creation.

Key Word Objectives: Recreational activities, Open space preservation, Regional cooperation, private

investments, Park creation, Park maintenance



10.

11.

12.

CONSIDERATION OF ZONING CRITERIA

Existing land uses and zoning of nearby property: The zoning of the nearby property is currently zoned
R-1 (Residential) & C-1 (Commercial)

Suitability of the subject property for the zone purposed: Yes

Extent to which property values of the subject property are diminished by the particular zoning
restrictions: None

Extent to which the destruction of property values of the subject property promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public: None that we know of.

Relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property owner:
You would be allowed to have a residence on the property.

Whether the subject property has reasonable economic use as currently zoned: Yes

The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the vicinity of the property: The tax records show the property has been owned by Mr.
Garfield since August 1979 (as far back as the records show).

Whether the proposed zoning will be a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of
adjacent and nearby property: It would be.

Whether the proposed zoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property: It would not.

Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policies and intent of the
Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map shows green space/conservation.

Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome
use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. It would not.

Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the
property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal:
Rezoning the property would come closer to meeting the future comprehensive plan than currently zoned.



Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

ﬁzezone [JConditional Use Variance [ Variance

| Current Zoning: Requested Change: j
C-] R.l l
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
[ 0-079-03% 7800

Applicant/Owner & Phone: ,Ci-rn D:Q P\ C£ ,Di QVSC"N HZ? 034503
Street Name & Number: |SL| Q.\tﬁfm\m?a Ual( ey &,
Mailing Address: DNiame

[/ %foua/; (4, ZoD25

City, State, Zip Code: ‘Zr"

Request: Ef"?mue 149 /\) X /

e S John Morehose made a motion to
5-19.2 035 I approve the rezone. Stan Porter
2 E(APPRDVED A5 8TR P seconded the motion to approve.
The vote was unanimous.

The motion to approve carried.

— [ APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[ TABLED
[ DENIAL

[3 APPROVED as SUBMITTED

3 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[J TABLED
[T DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 36-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government nfﬁc%who will be responsible for

making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES'[J NO-[X. If YES, then on a separate page,
please furnish the following information;

A) The name of the local Eovernment official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made.

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

C) An enumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years,

Signature of Applicant/owner:




Walker County Planning Office

RezonzConditional Use Variance & Variance Apnlication
R2zene Ciconditiona! Usa Vananca O Varianes

Current Zoning: Requssted Change: 7
R-z C-]
Mzp & Poreel Dabz: Fpa:
N 191-09% Yelie 25 |% Fog .o

[3 . i . i - ‘\f '-l . e ._: '.: _.‘I._.‘ P
Applicant/Cviner & Phone: -4t r.l.-'.- .l\.t\.‘ J'F:"r' AT A e 2 LI 'f

e T % _J’ — !‘ f'l ||
Straet Mame & Nuaben ey cark O g Feoac

Mailing Address: 108 Yhok (4, !'-\:'L;'»'z:‘g!

-,

ciry, state, zlp Codes_ Nazinu e GA oy
p! .

bat el Bamiom e ol poes

Reanest: OGN b ST N O {Lose *,‘
- " ' i . {i Fi “ 7 it '[:
[ TR ]""‘»'n! Wy T I|»'--|'l'. .I'C.. Lo B I\.\ 1

T W T

PLAMEING: COMMISSIIN RECOMIIZNDATION;

Tl AZDROVED AS SUBHITTED

[ APPROYED WITH COMNDITIONS

i1 TABLED

O bENlAL

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ZIMNAL DECISIQN:

Tl APPROVED AS SUEMITTED

O APPROVED WITH COMDITIONS

... ] TABLED

<. [J DEMIAL

Taz felloming disclosicrs i cugcired of the applizanc(s) by Sauglon 38-674 < O.C.G.A. The folizaing Is for
disclosuse purpozes ealy and daws not disqualify the petitio

"Wicltin the past two psaes, have yag ads efiber fampzign contrittleas talating $250.00 or morz andlar I\,L/
gl gift3 bindng valee of $250.00 or more to 6 lucal governmers oéficlal who will be respoesible f2r .
mahlng @ Mesinmendaiiza or eclslea on the applivsiiin? YES O HO GEI YES, thaa opa aearale puns, 'U"'
plexze furnsh the fullowing inforrmation;

A) Th2 name of the local pevernonent ofiiizialis) to whom easl uniciulion ur gl vaas maca, M

tww years Emmadintely pracading the filling of the apglization,

) The total dollar amseent(s) of vacl cumpaizn made by the applicant 1o sueh lues] ofildal duzng the
€) Anenugnerution and description of each 8% havieg sulue of 2250.00 or mare madu by the _‘\i

applicans tw wocd lucat gowernmanc cefiztal witlin the paat bav yracs, : ?“?\ Qa-.‘ 2
S et
aturs i - n ; H R Y HGE
Signiurs of Applicani/ownss; W, \g‘} '?;‘ ‘1. O } 3:5
- . o0 WS
P A S , : %‘%‘(-'"--.‘fw 13.-3‘*!'? é‘@'
A’Jq.\,—y-t'(*. iy ;::; S \:” Jﬁl (' 3 24 ‘.i by 0 | l"fﬁ? COuUN “;\\\\
APPLICANT/OWNER = DATE LU



WALKER COUNTY Owner: Wanda Darlene Myers
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

AGENDA ITEM
Petitioner: same

Location of 705 Park City Road
Property: Rossville, GA. 30741

Tax map & parcel number 0-191-093

PC Meeting Date: 5/15/2025
! |

Present Zoning: | R-2 (Residential)

APPLICANT’S INTENT: Requesting a partial rezone from R-2 to C-1 for the
section that sits at the corner of Hwy 2, Park City Road
and Taylor Street in order to build a convenience store.
DETAILS OF REQUEST: The Comprehensive Plan shows Country Suburban which
allows for commercial use but discourages franchise or
corporate architecture designs.

Projected Area:




Zoning Map:

LN

¥ rat‘ﬁﬁ;. i ﬁ_
e




Future Land Use Map:

Roads ~ —+— Railroads o Lukes & Ponds i-_____j Crossroad Conumunity
Higlways Rivers & Streams i__:_} City Linits
Character Arcas
- Aanuty Center - Downtawn Mived Use S ; Historic Mill Redevelopanent Area - Residential Redeveloprent Areu
Acttvity Destination District Estare Residental o Imdusteral Rural Resulential
Agriculture / Forestey ESTS Fairyland Proper Lovkowt Mountun: Nesghtorhwo:d Scleoo!
Awrport Guteway Corridor Ml Vitlage Town Center
Coanty Sulneelan Greenspare / Conservation Ara Missionary Ridge Resufential Traditwnal Negleborlwod!

Downtown Business District Hrstoric Downitown Meved Use



2022-2032 Walker County Joint Comgrehensive Plan

County Suburban: Walkar County

Description: Lccation of predominareiy Fost-
WWN residential single famiiy housing within
subdivided parcels of large amounts of cpen
space, County suburban housing Js aften found
i proximity af public water. These locations ore
choracterized by law pedestrion mobiiity, litle
or no transit, 0 high emount of open spacs, end
@ figh to moderate degree of residentiol
building  s2parotion. Smaoller  retail
establiznments may be found in these locations
aisc. Public institutional uses may be found at
these jocarions in the form of fire departments,
public school. recreational facilities, end ect.

Figure 52. Residential development in the Mountain
View area

Suggested Development Strotegy:
1. Provide only limited p’anned expzansion of water and sewer infrastructure =o to controf the rate

of growth.

2. Wherever possible, connect to regionai network of greznspace and trails mads availzble to
pedestrians, bicyclists, and other non-vehiculzr means of trensporiation.

3. Encoursgs compatible architecture styles that mainczin the desired, loczl charzctzr, znd do not
include “franchise” or “corporat=" architscture.

4. Discourage tourist-based industries

5. Permit conservztion subdivisions, accessory housing units, =nd we!l-designed multifzmily
residences to increzse neighborhood density versus traditional suburban development

6. Add traffic calming improvements, sidswa'ks, streat trees, and increzs=d strest interconnection
to improve walkability and slow trafiic within existing neighborhood.

Lond uses:
*  Single family residential
*  Commercial
* Parks/Recreaticn/Cons=rvation
®  Public/Institutionsl

Key Word Objectives: Post- W'/Ii housing, Subdivision, Building separation, Limited commercial, Pubiic
Water, Open space, Recrestion, Conservation, Troditiona! neighborhocd, Sense cf place, Alternative
muftimodal transportation, regional identity, Heritage Freservetion, Infill develooment, Open scoce
preservation, Environmenta! protection



10.

11

12.

CONSIDERATION OF ZONING CRITERIA

Existing land uses and zoning of nearby property: The zoning of the nearby property is currently zoned
R-2 (Residential), & C-1 (Commercial)

Suitability of the subject property for the zone purpose: Yes

Extent to which property values of the subject property are diminished by the particular zoning
restrictions: None

Extent to which the destruction of property values of the subject property promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public: None that we know of.

Relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property owner:
Would allow for more commercial business.

Whether the subject property has reasonable economic use as currently zoned: Yes

The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the vicinity of the property: She has owned this property since December 1999.

Whether the proposed zoning will be a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of
adjacent and nearby property: There is commercial property across Park City Road.

Whether the proposed zoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property: It would cause more traffic.

Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policies and intent of the
Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map shows country suburban.

Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome
use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. It would cause more traffic.

Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the
property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal:
This would allow for more commercial use.



Walker County Planning Office

E:;mf-ﬂ:ondiﬁonal Use Variance & Variance Application
Rezone [IConditional Use Varlance [ Variance

Current Zoning: Requested Change:
Rz C-]
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
- 191-693 Y-l-25 |5 Boo.o®
Applicant/Owner & Phone: Wan Clr:'; l}.\ flene N yers (é];./ ‘3) S (R jz"L/

Street Name & Number: "'."']'1-‘, S ':Ocu"k Cy {‘{f QOQC'.{

Mailing Address: Jog \DC"-J'){’: Cﬁ\.‘L‘f /’2:")‘22"({
City, State, Zip Code: R»ﬁx‘ull(ff. GA =on4l

Request: (\)Chf‘d_ .\ @-Q"? N Jis QTP Darce \

: . il "n Stan Porter made a motion to approve
1o &1('_}’1 ( "oy i“(b\) A 9\ i PC&/‘ /Q C_L‘Q i/ ]Q\(g with the condtions that a fence or

9] J i landscaping be put up on the residentail

side of the property and that the entrance
design be approved by the Road Superintendent.
Todd Holt seconded the motion to approve with
conditions. The vote was unanimous.
The motion to approve with conditions carried.

[1 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED
S-18-202% M APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[ TABLED

[0 DENIAL

3 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

[CJ] APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[J TABLED

[J DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicani(s) by Section 36-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government official who will be responsible for

making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES {J NO [ 1f VES, then on a separate page,
please furnish the following Information;

A) The name of the local government official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made,

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

C) An enumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Owner:

, [ <\ -
Ua»wﬂn 0&4-1,@/@ / } LD 24-)5-25
APPLICANT/OWNER ~ DATE



Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Varfancs & Yariance Application

0O Rezene Eanndit:-:mal Use varaace O3 VYuzianze
Current Zoning: Requested Change:
Z5 ONDONBha ] VST Fo allon .
R‘ Za 2rall-seal? 1N -lhope elooy I»'o-lfaflﬂﬂ
Map & Parcel Date; Fee:

| &0 -0 9¥ | 4 egoes | (8000 |

Applicant/Owner & Thone:  \) axen Fﬂ?t‘ﬂ S H35-612-0R Sz
Street Name & Number: (209 Hon% Dyiye

Mailing Address;
City, Stace, Zip code: _RO3SVIYY G A 307¢)

Reguest: | am requeﬁﬂn% o house uvp 4o 10
doos ot a tipe, Ahoooh i hothe bomdinﬁi

M, SO vesCUes. iensures will ye taken fo _
suve o NeOAMLL efect on Ha neighwerfosd (fe.r
ELANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Irchuded [ Her,

O APPROVED A5 SUBMITTED

— [0 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

0O TamLLD

[0 DENTAL

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FINAL DECISION:

O APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

0O AYPHOVED WITEH CONDITIONS

[ TADLED

0O pcwiaL

The fullewing dlzclezare 5 poguired of the applicantis) by Sective 35-67A of 0,C.G.A. The feliowilng Is fus
diselasuce purposes only and does net dizgualléy the patitizn,

Within the past twe years, have yeu ade sither campalgn alributions tecallap $250,03 or mare 2nd/ar
gven glers havieg value of $256.00 ar mees 1o 3 Jozal goveznment officia] wha wil be rspansible for
maling a recamymeadution or daelslen an the deplication? YE8 3 NO B 6 ves, thenena Mpacate pape,
pizas= furnlsh the Inllawing infarasicen;

A} Tae rame of the Yozn) yyvermmen: olflelifs) to whum cask contaibutiun ur gift was mada,

B} The teenl dollac ameunt{s) of vazh campalgn mads by 3k applicans to each lecal effizia? during the
fwa years immediately pracating the flling of the aoplivwion,

C) A snumeraticn end descripsion of each Eilt hindng value of $250,00 or rmore mide hy 1he
applizant 1o <acl Jozol yovernmens officis) witliin the past cwa years,

Signature of Applicant/Ownnr:

Mf 4-10-26
PP

CANT/OWNER DATE




WALKER COUNTY Owner: Jaxen Abbasi
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

AGENDA ITEM
Petitioner: same

Location of 609 Holly Drive
Property: Rossville, GA. 30741

Tax map & parcel number 0-190-048

PC Meeting Date: 5/15/2025

I |

Present Zoning: | R-2 (Residential)

APPLICANT’S INTENT: Requesting a conditional use variance to operate a dog
kennel/boarding out of her residence which is zoned R-2
DETAILS OF REQUEST: The Comprehensive Plan shows Country Suburban which

allows for commercial use, but it does not meet the
kennel regulation requirements.




To Whom It May Cancern,

| am writing to formally request a conditional use variance to operate a small-scale, in-home dog
boarding business at 609 Holly Drive, Rossville. My business model is buill on responsible,
compassionate pet care while ensuring minimal impact on my neighbaors and the surrounding
community. As a single mother, this business is not only something | am passionate about, but it
is also how | can support myself and my two-year-old daughter. | have worked hard to build an
outstanding reputation for my business and look forward to the apportunity to continue to
provide my services in the Georgia/Tennessee area.

| have been operating very successfully in another residential area for over two years without a
single complaint. My previous location was inspected by the Georgia Depariment of Agriculture
and passed with flying colors, with no negative repercussions to the neighborhood. The
proposed new location is under 0.5 miles from several other businesses. Additionally, no
exterior indicators of a business existing will be displayed. My business is designed to be
low-impact, and | am committed to maintaining a peaceiul environment. My proposal includes
the following key points to address any potential concerns:

* Limited Capacity: | will never exceed 10 dogs at any given time, including both my
personal senior sanctuary dogs (who spend the majority of their day sleeping indoors
due to their age) and up to 5 boarders at a time.

* Naise Control: Dogs will be housed indoors overnight, and outdoor time will be strictly
supervised to prevent excessive barking or other nuisance behaviors. Any dog that is
prone to persistent noise issues will not be accepted in my program.

« Traffic controt: All boarding drop-ofis and pick-ups are by appointment only. Customers
will be able to park in my driveway, eliminating any negative effects on traffic or parking
in the neighborhoad.

* Cleanliness & Hygiene: The play yard will be cleaned daily, guaranteeing there are no
odors or unsanitary conditions. Waste disposal will be handied responsibly and in
accordance with all regulations.

« Professional Experience: | am Fear Free Certified and have over eight years of
experience as a professional dog trainer and boardar. All dags are well-managed and
comfortable in my care.

¢ Proven Track Record: My business has received numerous five-star reviews from
satisfied clients who appreciate my professional, ethical, and respansible approach to
pet care.

* Community & Safety Commitment: My property will be securely fenced, and alt degs will
be monitored at all times. There will be no off-leash roaming, and | will personally make
sure that my operations do not negatively impact traffic, noise levels, or the general
character of the neighborhood.

¢ Compliance & Transparency: | am willing to comply with all local regulations, undergo
periodic inspections, and implement any reasonable conditions set forth by the board to
maintain a positive relationship with the community.



I am confident that my business will not only adhere to the highest standards of pet care but will
also enhance the community by providing a much-needed service for responsible pet owners. |
would greatly appreciate the opportunity to discuss this request in person and address any

concerns you may have.

Thank you for your time and consideration. | look forward to your response and hope to work
collaboratively to ensure this endeavor benefits everyone involved.

Sincerely,

Jaxen Abbasi



Zoning Map:

i {

& -
- T!""“.Icr.'lh‘m

‘ﬁ!,




Sec. 22-154. Animal care facilities (animal hospitals, veterinary clinics, kennels or other

animal boarding facilities).

(g) The fellowing words, terms and phrases, when used in this sectior, shall have the meanings ascriced to them
in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a diifarent meaning;

Kennel means any premises at which 5 or mere canines or felings, 4 months old or elder, are kapt eithar
permanzntly or temgorarily for the purpose of sale, care, breading, or training. K2anels may ba privata or

commercial.

Livestack includes catile, horses, goats, shaep, swine, poultry, ducks, geese, and othar fowl; and rabbits,
minks, foxes and cther fur- or hide-baaring animals customarily brad or raised in cagtivity, whather cwnasd or kept

for plazsure, urtility or sgle.

Veterinary means a hospital or clinic providing madical care and treatment for animals.

(1} Large onimai vererinory means a place where horses, cattle, sheap, or other animals normally kept in
agricultural settings are given medical or surgical treatment ancl the boarding of animals in limited 1o

short-tarm care.

(2)  Smoll animo! veterinory means a place where dogs, cats, birds, or other animals normally kept as
household pats are given medical or surgical treatment and the boarcling of animals is limitad to short-

tarm care.

(o) Animal hospitals and veterinary clinics are permissibla in the A-2 and C-1 zoning districss, sutject to the site
dasign standarcls for the districts and the sugplementzl standards of this section.

fc}  Animal hospitals and vezerinary clinics shall ba permissible in freestanding buildings enly.

{d)  Dasign sianderds for an enimal hospital or veterinary clinic are shown in the following tatla;

Table 22-154.1. Standards for an Animal Hesgital or Vetarinary Clinic

Deveiopment Feotures

Stondard

Minimum land area

5 acres in A-1, if housing animals

Animazls alloved

Domestic pats, farm animals, and livestock: wild
animals are prohibized

Minimum builcing sethack from all proparty lines
which abut a residantizl zoning district and non-
resicantial zoning district.

Abut residential—100 faat
Abut non-residential—75 feet

IMinimum outdoor run sethack from all property linas

400 feet

Outdoer runs

Greunds shall be maintained in & sanitary condition at
all times with solid surface areas having crains
connacted to an approved sanitary facility. Odor and
pest control required

Hours of oparation

Limited to 7:00 a.m. until 6:C0 g.m.

Bufier reguiremants

50-foot buifer plus a fence or wall on any residantially
zoned property line

Boarding

Sound preofing required

(2} Keeping of caninas or felines, whather as pets for personal enjoyment, braading, or boardin g shall he
consicdarad & kennel when there are 6 or more adult canines or felines on a progarty.




(1} Akennel without an outdoor run is permissitla in the A-1, R-A, C-1, and CN zoning districts subject to
the site design standards of the zening district and the supplemental standards of this section.

(2)  Akannel with an outdoer run is permissible in the A-1 zoning districts subject to the site desizn
swanclerds of the zoning district and the sugplamental szandards of this section.

(3)  Akannel shall comply with the nuisance requirements perzaining to animal control as set forth in this

Cocla.

(4)  Akennel must meet all State requiremants that are apglicable to the siza of oparation proposed.

(5)  Akennel shell meet the dasign standards sat forth in the following tadle;

Table 22-154.2. Szandards for Kennals

Deveiopment Feotures Stondard
Animals allowed Canines or felines
Minimum lot size for a kennal with an outdgoor run 5 acres
Minimum building sethack from all proparty lines 200 feex

vthich ghut & residantial zoning district

Minimum outdoor run seiback, includas fancing, from | 400 fee:

all progarty linas which abut & rurel or residantial
zoning district

Outdoor runs

Grounds shali be mzintained in & sanitary condition at
all times with solid surface areas having drains
connacted to an epproved sanitary fecility

Odors anc pests relatad to the operation of a kennel

Odor and pest contrel required

Hours of oparation

Limited to 7:00 a.m. until 6:C0 g.m.

Bufier reguiremants

50-foet buffar pius a fence or wall an any resicantially
2oned properiy line

Boarding

Sound preofing requirad




Future Land Use Map:

Roads ~ —+— Ruilroads ... Lakes & Ponds i:___:j Crossroad Community
Higlweays Rivers & Streams L-:} City Linits
Character Areas
- Adtinty Center - Daowntown Muoed Use l:=‘:‘ Historic Mill Redevelopment Area - Resiclentiad Redevelopnient Aree
Adtivity Desténation Districe Estare Residential L Dadustral Raral Reswletial
Agniculture / Foresory *I: "'- Fairylared Proper Lovkout Mountain Neighborfood Seliow!
Awrport Gutewsiy Carrisdor Ml Vitluge Town Cenler
Connty Suburluan Greenspace / Conseevanion Ara Missionary Ridge Resudential Traditwnal Neglborlood

Downtown Business District Historic Downtows: Mived Use



20632-2032 Walker County Joint Comprehensive Plan

Fizure 52. Residential development in tha Mountain
View araa

Suggested Development Strategy:

County Suburbhan: Walker County

Description: Location of predominorely Fost-
WWY residential single family housing within
subdivided parcels of large amounts of open
space. County suburban housing is often found
in proximity of public water. These locations are
choracterized by low pedestrion mobiiity, lirtie
or ho transit, o high emount of open spece, and
@ high to modercte degree of residential
huilding  s2paration. Smalier  retail
estapliznments may be found in thess locations
alsc. Public institutional uses may be found ai
these focations ja the form of fire departments,
public school, recreational faciiities, end ect.

1. Provide only limited pianned expznsion of water and sewer infrastructure so to contro! the rate

of groveath.

2. Wherever possible, connect to regionai network of gresnspace and trails mads availzble to
pedestrianz, bicyciists, and other non-vehiculzr means of transportation.

3. Encourzgs compatible architecture styles that mainztzin the desired, locsl character, end do not

include “franchise” or “corporate" architecture.

4. Discourage tourist-based industries

5. Permit conservation subdivisions, accessory housing units, znd well-designed multifamily
residences to increzse neighborhood density versus traditional suburban development

6. Add traffic calming improvements, sidzswalks, street trees, and increzs=d strezt interconnection
to improve walkability and slow traffic within existing neighborhood.

Lond uses:
*  Single family residentizl
*  Commercial
*  Parks/Recreation,/Conssrvation
*  Public/Institutionsl

Key Word Qbjectives: Fost- W/ housing, Subdivision, Building separation, Limited commerciai, Public
Water, Open space, Recreation, Conservation, Troditiona! neighborhocd, Sense of place, Alternative
multimodal trensportation, regional identity, Heritage Freservation, Infil development, Open spoce

preservation, Envircnmentc! protection



10.

11.

12.

CONSIDERATION OF ZONING CRITERIA

Existing land uses and zoning of nearby property: The zoning of the nearby property is currently zoned
R-2 (Residential), & R-3 (Residential)

Suitability of the subject property for the zone purpose: Yes

Extent to which property values of the subject property are diminished by the particular zoning
restrictions: None

Extent to which the destruction of property values of the subject property promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public: None that we know of.

Relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property owner:
Whether the subject property has reasonable economic use as currently zoned: Yes

The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the vicinity of the property: She just purchased this property in April 2025.

Whether the proposed zoning will be a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of
adjacent and nearby property: Zoning will remain the same.

Whether the proposed zoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property: Unknown.

Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policies and intent of the
Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map shows country suburban.

Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome
use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. It would not.

Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the
property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal:
Would recommend working with animal control on guidelines and regulations if approved.



Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

[ Rezone EfConditional Use Variance [ Variance

Current Zoning: Requested Change:
wnditiohal vse Fo allow )
R‘ 2 small-scale in-home ology poqrdma
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
0-190 -0 M4¥ 4.1n.2025 | [9D.00

Applicant/Owner & Phone: Y AYeN Abbasi 4%5-61%-0252
Street Name & Number; (0094 B ol ltj Dyive

Mailing Address:
City, State, zip Code:_RO3SVI\VWY , (GA  207Y]

Request: | Aam TQQMSTI‘ﬂ% o _house up +o 10
do%s at  a hHme throoon in_home boqrdingé.

MU Senior  vescues. (easures will be taken to
wnduve o negjatrive efect on e nei'cahborlgoaof, er

: includeq (e ter,
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

[0 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

[0 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

] TABLED Will Ingram made a motion to deny
- due to the proximity of the neighboring
5.15.209% E{ DENIAL houses. Todd Holt seconded the motion

to deny. The motion to deny was

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FINAY, DECISION; unanimous with Rob Walthour abstaining

[] APPROVED AS SUBMITTED Lrom the vote. The motion to deny carried.

[0 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[0 TABLED

[0 DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 36-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250,00 or more to a local government official who will be responsible for
making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES [J No Ff. If YES, then on a separate page,
please furnish the following information;

A) The name of the local government official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made.

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

€) Anenumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Owner:

W%%ﬁ// 4-10-265

APPKICANT/OWNER DATE




---------- Forwarded message ~--------

From: Bailey Clements <b.clements@walkerga.us>
Date: Tue, May 6, 2025 at 3:14 PM

Subject: 609 Holly Drive

To: Jon Pursley <j.pursley@walkerga.us>

Hey Jone, | just left 609 Holly Drive. | would feel comfortable approving the variance.
The "boarding" aspect is very small. There are three kennels in a downstairs area of the
home. The flooring has been redone and is epoxy to make cleaning and sanitation
easier. They are in the process of putting up a privacy fence in the backyard as well.
Even though the set back for the house and fence is not 200/400ft, the very minimum
number of animals being boarded should not cause an issue on the property or to
neighbors. There is no sound-proofing at this time, but due to the location in the
residence, as well as it being a brick home, | do not think that anything extra would be
necessary at this time. They also did have a Dept. of Ag license when they lived in
Wildwood, and are working to renew it to the new location. | have verified her previous
agent with the Dept. of Ag and have full confidence that if they licensed them previously,
they will do so again.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Bailey Clements

Executive Director

Walker County Animal Services
706-375-2100



B10 + WEDNESDAY, APRIL 23, 2025 ¢ WALKER COUNTY MESSENGER

8025 Debtors and Creditors 8030 Divorce 8050 Forfeiture/Seizure 8065 Planning Commission ~ 8075 f
Wmii2e Wwmilisg 28 th day of March, 2025. County Courthouse Annex 11l located Wm1067
gpnl7 gpn08 By: McKayla Tennant at 201 5. Main Street LaFavette, GA. gpnll
IN THE PROBATE COURT FOR THE THE SUPERIOR COURT Deputy Clerk of Superior Court of NOTICE OF SALE UND
COUNTY OF WALKER OF WALKER COUNTY Walker County, Georgia For further information please call GEORGIA, WALKER

STATE OF GEORGIA
IN RE: ESTATE OF JANICE ANN
HENDRICKS, Deceased
ESTATE NO, 20,309
NOTICE TO DEBTORS/CREDITORS
GEORGIA, WALKER COUNTY.
All creditors of the Estate of JANICE
ANN HENDRICKS, late of said county,
deceased, are hereby notified to render
their demands to the undersigned ac-
cording to law and all persons indebted
to said estate are required to moke im-
mediate payment to Jerry Von Hen-
dricks.
This ¢ th day of April, 2025,
Jerry Von Hendricks
8528 River Cove Drive
Harrison, TN 37341
4:16,23,30;5:7,2025

STATE OF GEORGIA
ANTHONY ANDREW BLANKEN-
SHIP,

Plaintiff,

V.

MELISSA JANE BLANKENSHIP,

Defendant.

Civil Action No: 24-SUCV-0771
NOTICE

To: MELISSA BLANKENSHIP

By order of the court for service by
publication daoted April 4, 2025, you are
hereby notified that on December 23,
2024, Anthony Blankenship filed suit
against you for divorce. You are re-
quired to file with the clerk of the Su-
perior Court, and to serve upon plain-
tiff's attorney, Jennifer E. Hildebrand,
P.0. Box 1602, LaFayette, GA 30728, an
in writing within sixty (60)

Wm1130

apnd7
NOTICE TO DEBTORS
AND CREDITORS
GEORGIA, WALKER COUNTY.
All creditors of the estate of Vera E.
Nicholson, late of said County, de-
ceased, are hereby notified to render
their demands to the undersigned ac-
cording to low and all persons indebted
to said estate are required to make im-
mediate payment fo me.
This 3rd day of April, 2025.
Sharon L. Nichelson, Administrator
c/o Lindsay & Rawls, LLC
P. 0. Box 278
Rossville, Georgia 30741
4:16,23,30;5:7,2025

Wm1134

apnd7
NOTICE TO DEBTORS
and CREDITORS
All creditors of the estate of Donald R.
Wallin, deceased, late of Walker Coun-
ty, Georgla, are hereby notified to ren-
der in their demands to the under-
signed according to law, and all per-
sons indebted to soid estate are re-
quired to make immediate payment to
the undersigned.
This 10™ day of April, 2025,
Joshua Wallin,
277 Lyerly Sr,
Summerville, Georgia 30747.
4:16,23,30;5:7,2025

Wmil42

apno7
NOTICE TO DEBTORS
and CREDITORS
All creditors of the estate of Terry Don
Smith, deceased, late of Walker Coun-
ty, Georaia, are hereby nofified fo ren-
der in their demands to the under-
signed according to law, and all per-
sons indebted to said estate are re-
quired to moke immediate payment to
the undersigned.
Amy Shy Smtih,
902 Belvoir Dr,
Frankfort, Ky 40601.
4:23,30; 5:7,14,2025

Wm1145

apn07

NOTICE TO DEBTORS/CREDITORS

GEORGIA, WALKER COUNTY
All creditors of the estate of Melvin
Jeffrey Martin, late of said County, de-
ceased, are hereby notified to render
their demands to the undersigned oc-
cording to law and all persons indebted
to said estate are required to make im-
mediate payment to me.
This 15th day of April, 2025,

Nina Shea Martin, Administrator
cfo Beniamin T. Bradford,
Attorney for Estate
120 East Patton Street
LaFayette, Georgia 30728
4:23,30; 5:7,14,2025

Wm1ll4é

apno?
NOTICE TO DEBTORS/CREDITORS
GEORGIA, WALKER COUNTY
All creditors of the estate of Joseph
Michael Harris, late of said County,
deceased, are hereby nofified to render
their demands to the undersigned ac-
cording to law and all persons indebted
to said esiule ore reuuired to maoke im-
mediate pa nt to m
This 1sth duv cf Anrll 2025
Lindsey Michelle Steigerwall,
Administrator
c/o Benjomin T, Brodford,
Attorney for Estate
120 East Patton Street
LaFayette, Georgia 30728
4:23,30; 5:7,14,2025

Wm1147

gpn07
NOTICE TO DEBTORS/CREDITORS
GEORGIA, WALKER COUNTY
All creditors of the estate of Roy C.
Bailey, Sr., late of said County, de-
ceased, are hereby nofified to render
their demands to the undersigned oc-
cording to low and all persons indebted
to said estate are required to make im-
mediate payment fo m
This 15th day of knrll, 2025.
Arlether A. Bailey, Executor
cfo Benjamin T. Bradford,
Attorney for Estate
120 East Patton Street
LaFayette, Georgia 30728
4:23,30; 5:7,14,2025

Wm1154

apno7
NOTICE TO CREDITORS
AND DEBTORS
WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA
All creditors of the estate of BENSON
ARTHUR DAVIS, decedent, late of
WALKER County, are hereby notified
to render in their demands to the un-
dersigned occording fo law, and all
persons indebted to soid estate ore re-
quired to moke immediate payment to
the ADMINISTRATOR of the Estate,
EDDY DAVIS,
2062 CLEAR CREEK ROAD,
ELLIJAY, GA 30536,
4:23,30; 5:7,14,2025

WMI1155
GPNoO7

days of April 4, 2025,
Witness, the Honoroble Don W.
Thompson, Judge, Walker County Su-
perior Court,
This 4™ day of April, 2025,
Carter Brown, Clerk
Walker CouFa.ﬂv s;;:;arior Court

0
LaFayette, GA 30728
4:9,16,23,30,2025

8035 Name Changes

WM1086

gpnl1s
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF
WALKER COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA
in re: Ethan Michael Willioms
Civil Action File#: SUCV2025000199
NOTICE OF PETITION TO CHANGE

NAME
State of Georgia
County of Walker
Motice is hereby given that Ethan
Michael Willlams, the undersianed,
filed a petition to the Superior Court of
Walker, Georgio, on the 21st day of
March, 2025, praying for a change in
the name of Ethan Michael Williams
to Ethan Michael Folks. Notice is here-
by given pursuant to law to any inter-
est or affected party to appear in said
Court and to file an cbiection to such
name change. Obiections must be filed
with said Court within thirty(30) days
of the filing of said petition. Any inter-
ested party has the right to appear in
this case and file objections within the
time prescribed in 0.C.G.A.19-12-1(F)
(2) AND (3)
THIS 21st DAY OF March, 2025,
/5! Ethan Michael Williams
96 Lookout Dr
Rising Fawn, GA 30738
4:2,9,16,23,2025

Wm1097

gpn1s
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF
WALKER COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

FILE

NOTICE OF PETITION
TO CHANGE NAME

Notice is hereby given that EDNA
LOUISE FORD, the undersigned filed
a Petition to Change Name in the Supe-
rior Court of Walker County, Georgia
on the 25" day of March, 2025, praying
for a change of the name of Petitioner-
from EDNA LOUISE FORD to EDNA
LOUISE LUSK. Any interested party
has the right to appear in this case and
file objections within 30 days after the
Petition to Change Name was filed.
This 25" day of March. 20!

/s/ EDNA LOUISE F{'.‘IRI'.‘J,I

Petitioner.
4:9,16,23,30,2025

Wm1132

gpn1s
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF
WALKER COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

IN RE: CODY BLANE PENDER-
GRASS
CIVIL ACTION FILE NO:
sucv

NEWSPAPER NOTICE

Notice is hereby given by Petitioners,
Michoel Shawn Duncen and Tracey
Lynn Duncan and all other interested
persons that a Petition for Name
Change has been filed on March 25,
2025, in the Superior Court of Walker
County, Georgia seeking to change the
name of the minor Child, CBP, Jr. to
MMD. You are hereby notified to file
any objections you may have upon the
Petitioners attorney Shawn Bible P.O.
Box 1423, Ringgold, Georgia 30736 with-
in sixty (60) days. If no response Is
made within sixty (60) doys, o hearing
will be had regarding the Petition.

This 10" day of April 2025.

McKayla Tennant,
CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK
Superior Court of Walker County
Lookout Mountain Judicial Circuit
4:23,30;5:7,14,2025

Prepared by:
D. Andrew Faolkner
Georgia Bar No. 695599
Bradley A. Hutchins
GA Bar No. 380682
Counsel for Petitioner Carolyn Walker,
in official capacity as Tax Commis-
sioner
of Walker County
WEISSMAN PC
One Allionce Center, 4 th Floor
3500 Lenox Road, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30326
(404) 9264500 | F 4600
4:9,16,23,30,2025

Whmioes

apni2
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF
WALKER COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA
CAROLYN WALKER, in official ca-
pocity as TAX COMMISSIONER OF
WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA,
Petitioner,

V.
FERNA L. WOOD AND/OR HIS OR
HER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN HEIRS
AT LAW, ANY AND ALL PARTIES
THAT MAY CLAIM AN INTEREST IN
THE EXCESS FUNDS GENERATED
FROM THE JUNE 6, 2023 TAX SALE
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT LEE
SCHOOL RD, LA FAYETTE (TAX
PARCEL: 0491 029),
Respondents.
CIVIL ACTION
FILE NO. SUCV2024000677
NOTICE OF SERVICE BY

PUBLICATION
To Respondents - Ferna L. Wood
andfor His or Her Known or Unknown
Helrs at Law; and Any and all parties
that may claim an interest in the Ex-
cess Funds generated from the June 6,
2023 tax sale for property located at
Lee School Rd, La Fayette (Tax Par-
cel: 0491 029): Please take nofice that
Petitioner CAROLYN WALKER, in of-
ficial capacity as TAX COMMISSION-
ER OF WALKER COUNTY ("Petition-
er") has filed a Summeons and Petition
for Interpleader In the Superior Court
of Walker County, Georgia in the
above-captioned case.
Respondents are hereby commanded
to file their Answer to the Petition
within 60 days of the date of the Order
Directing Service by Publication, or by
May 27, 2025, with the Clerk of Superi-
or Court of Walker County, 103 South
Duke Street, LaFayette, GA 30728, and
serve a copy of their Answer on Peti-
tioners counsel Bradley A, Hutchins, at
WEISSMAN PC, One Alliance Center,
4th Floor, 3500 Lenox Road, NE, At-
lanta, Georgia 30326,
Witness, the Judge of Walker County
Superior Court.
28th day of March, 2025
By: Carter Brown
Clerk of Superior Court of Walker
County, Georgia
Prepared by:
D. Andrew Folkner
Georgia Bar No. 695599
Bradley A. Hutchins
GA Bar No. 380682
Counsel for Petitioner Carolyn Walker,
in official copacity as Tax Commis-
sioner
of Walker County
WEISSMAN PC
One Alliance Center, 4th Floor
3500 Lenox Road, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30326
(404) 926 4500 | F 4600

4:9,16,23,30,2025

8055 Incorportation

Wmii23

apnié
NOTICE OF ORGANIZATION
Notice is hereby given that Articles of
Organization, which organizes Gilreath
Construction LLC, have been delivered
to the Secretary of State for filing in
accordance with the Georgia Limited
Liability Company Act. The initial reg-
istered office of the company is locat-
ed at 263 Loughridge Lane, La Fayette,
GA 30728, and its initial registered
agent at 263 Loughridoe Lone, La
Fayette, GA 30728 is Clifton Gilreath.
4:16,23,2025

Wm1133

apn0é
NOTICE OF INTENT TO
VOLUNTARY DISSOLVE
A CORPORATION
Notice is given that o Notice of Intent
to Dissolve Rhodes Oil Compony, INC,
a Georgia Corporation, with its regis-
tered office at 1405 Cinderella Road,
Lookout  Mountain, Georgia 30750,
Walker County Georgia , has been de-
livered fo the Secretary of State for fil-
ing in occordance with the Georgio
Business Corporation Code,
4:16,30,2025

Wm1135

gpnls
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF

WALKER COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA
In re: Laurie Elizabeth Ritzema
Civil Action File#: SUCV2025000236

NOTICE OF PETITION

TO CHANGE NAME
Notice is hereby given that Laurie
Elizobeth Ritzema, the undersianed,
filed a petition to the Superior Court of
Walker, Georgia, on the 10" day of
April, 2025, praying for a chonge in the
nome of Lourie Elizabeth Ritzemao to
Lourie Elizabeth Elwood. Notice is
hereby given pursuant to law to any in-
terest or affected party to appear in
said Court and to file an obiection to
such name change. Objections must be
filed with said Court within thirty(30)
days of the filing of said petition. Any
interested porty has the right to ap-
pear in this case ond file obiections
within  the time prescribed in
0.C.G.A.19-12-1(F)(2) AND (3).
This 10" day of April, 2025.

8056 Trade Name

Wmi1129

apnié
Walker County Superior Court
TRADE NAME REGISTRATION
Personally appeared the undersigned
who on oath deposes and says that:
Advanced Personal Finance LLC, 859
Cannon Rd, Lafayette, Georgia 30728,
is doing business in Walker County,
Georgla under the name of: My Finan-
cial Agents, 859 Cannon Rd, Lafayette,
Georgia 30728 and that the nature of
the business to be carried on at such
address is Insurance & Financial Ser-

vices.
4:16,30,2025

Wmilidl
gpnié
Walker County Superior Court
TRADE NAME REGISTRATION
Personally appeared the undersigned
who_on_oath deposes_and_says, that:

Walker County Planning & Develop-
ment at 706-638-4048.
23,2025

8075 Foreclosures

Wm1065

gpnll
NOTICE OF SALE UNDER POWER
STATE OF GEORGIA,
COUNTY OF WALKER
By virtue of a Power of Sale contained
in that certain Security Deed from Kel-
ly Wells Hurst Il to MORTGAGE
ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION S5Y5-
INC., A5 NOMINEE FOR

SOUTIONS, INC. DBA NEW AMERI-
CAN FUNDING, dated August 19, 2019
ond recorded on August 28, 2019 in
Deed Book 02044, Page 0091, in the Of-
fice of the Clerk of Superior Court of
Walker County, Georgia, said Security
Deed having been aiven to secure a
Mote of even date, in the original prin-
cipal amount of One Hundred Eighty-
Four Thousand and 00100 dollars
($184,000.00) with interest thereon as
provided therein, os last transferred to
NEW AMERICAN FUNDING LLC
F/K/A BROKER SOLUTIONS, INC.,
D/B/A NEW AMERICAN FUNDING,
recorded in Deed Book

2366, Page 118, aforesaid records, will
be sold at public outcry to the highest
bidder for cash before the courthouse
door of Walker County, Georgla, or at
such ploce as has or may be lawfully
designoted as an alternative location,
within the legal hours of sale on the
first Tuesday in May, 2025, all property
described In said Security Deed includ-
ing but not limited to the following de-
scribed property:

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF
LAND LYING AND BEING IN ORIGI-
NAL LAND LOT NO. 45 IN THE 7TH
DISTRICT 4TH SECTION WALKER
COUNTY, GEORGIA AND BEING IN
THE CITY OF LAFAYETTE, AND
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DE-
SCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE
WEST LINE OF CHEROKEE
STREET, SAID BEGINNING POINT
BEING 750 FEET, MEASURED
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID
STREET, NORTH OF THE NORTH-
WEST CORNER OF THE INTERSEC-
TION OF CHEROKEE STREET AND
WEST MAIN STREET IN SAID CITY,
SAID BEGINNING POINT BEING
FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS BEING
LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF THE PROPERTY CON-
VEYED BY I.H. HOLLEMAN TO W,
T. RHYNE BY DEED DATED
FEBRUARY 20, 1926, RECORDED IN

GE
DEED_RECORDS OF
SAID COUNTY, AND FROM SAID BE-
GINNING POINT;

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST

NO|
EAST CORNER OF PROPERTY NOW
OR FORMERLY OWNED BY EDGE;
THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST
LINE _OF SAID EDGE PROPERTY
70.0 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST

NE BY I. H.
HOLLEMAN BY THE AFORESAID
DEED; THENCE EAST ALONG THE
NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY
CONVEYED BY HOLLEMAN TO
RHYNME BY THE AFORESAID DEED
ISS FEET TO THE BEGINNING

INT.
SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH

ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY
AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY
LINE OF THE PROPERTY LYING
IMMEDIATELY SOUTH OF THE
ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY,
SAID TRACT OF LAND WHICH LIES
IMMEDIATELY SOUTH_ OF SAID
PROPERTY BEING THAT CERTAIN
PROPERTY UPON WHICH
CATED A DWELLING
KNOWN AS 314 SOUTH CHEROKEE
STREET __IN THE CITY OF
LAFAYETTE, AS SET OUT IN DEED
BOOK 527, PAGE &1, WALKER COUN-
TY, GEORGIA LAND RECORDS.
BEING THE SAME PROPERTY CON-
VEYED TO ROBERTT A. PLANK BY
EXECUTOR'S DEED FROM MARY
BALENT LONG AND SERGIO A.
GARZA-CORONA, AS CO-EXECU-
TORS OF THE LAST WILL AND TES-
TAMENT OF STEVEN W, MCCLOUD,
DECEASED DATED NOVEMBER 28,

o]

RIOR COURT OF WALKER COUNTY,
GEORGIA.

ALSC BEING THE SAME PROPER-

NE 16, 2005 00K 1337,
PAGE 68 IN THE OFF OF THE
CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT OF

ALKER CO

THIS CONVEYENCE IS MADE SUB-
"JFIFOCIESTQ THE FOI.LOWING EXCEP-
ANY GOVERNMENTAL ZONING
AND/OR_SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE
OR__REGULATION IN EFFECT
THEREON.

EXISTING JOINT DRIVEWAY
WHICH RUNS ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY PART OF THE ABOVE
DESCRIBED PROPERTY AND
ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF
THE PROPERTY LYING IMMEDI-
ATED W EALITL A TUS AnAue mr

Under and by virtue of
Sale contained in the Du
Debt given by Jackie Brc
es, LLC to Kai Chung
June 28, 2024, recorded
2347, Poge 145-169, We
Georgia records, convey
described property to sec
the original principal am
‘I‘Y TWO THOUSAND
RED TWENTY TWO
I$92 222.55) with interest
forth therein, there will t
lic outcry to the highe
cash before the courth
Walker County, Georaic
place as may be lawfully
an alternative, within th
of sale on the first Tue
2025, the following descril
SEE EXHIBIT A ATTA(
TO AND MADE A PART
The debt secured by sai
cure Debt hos been ond
clored due becouse of,
possible events of defou
pay the indebtedness as
and in the manner provid
and Deed to Secure Debt
maining in defoult, the
made for purpose of pay
and all expenses of this s
ed in the Deed to Secure
law. Said property will £
to any outstanding od
(including taxes that are
vet due, the right of rede
taxing authority, any n
might be disclosed by an
vey and inspection of the
assessments, liens, e
zoning ordinances,
covenants, and any matt
including but not limited
perior to the Deed to Sec
set out above. Said pro
sold an as is basis withe
sentation, warranty
against the above-nomed

signed.

Kai Chung Chem Is the
Deed to Secure Debt
0.C.G.A, § 44-14-162.2.
The entity that hos full o
gotiote, omend, and mo
to Secure Debt with the
Chung Chan, 2274 Le Clt
quitilam British Columbi
Conoda, (604)755-5126

To the best knowledge an
undersigned, the party in
the property Is Jackie
prises, LLC and saoid prc
monly known os 155
LaFayette, GA 30728,
flict arise between the
dress and the legal desc
aal will control.

The sale will be conduct
to confirmation thot the ¢
hibited under the US Bor
and (2) to final confirma
of the status of the loan »
of the Mortgage.

Jackie Brown Enterprise:
As Attorney in Fact for
Jackie Brown Enterprise:
Howe Law Firm,

4385 Kimball Brldge Rou(
.&Inhureﬁa, GA

£78-566-6

THIS FIRM IS ACTING

R THAT PURPOSE

EXHIBI

LEGAL PRDPERTY DE
ETCit 24-0204

ALL THAT TRACT OR
land lying ond being in -
Lot No. 167, in the 8th D
Section of Walker Cou
and being more particule
according to a Plat of Su
ie Brown and LaVenya W
by K.C, Campbell (GRI
dated November 17, 2020
20}, as follows: BEGINN
half inch rebar found at
tion of the Morth right ¢
Louis Guoither Road (ha
right of way), and the

way line of Veeler Road
foot right of way); ther
with the NMorth right of
Louis Gaoither Road, Sou
49 minutes 13 seconds Ec
of 694.53 feet to a one-hi
found; thence leaving th
of way line of Louis €
MNorth 03 degrees 33 minu
East, a distance of 387.11
half inch rebar found; th
degrees 57 minutes 38 se
distance of 693.44 feet

inch rebar found in the
way line of Veeler Road;
and with the East right
Veeler Road the followin
distances: South 05 degre
19 seconds West, a disft
feet, and South 04 degre
15 seconds West, a distt
feet to a one-half inch r
the intersection of the
way line of Louis Galther
East right of way line of
the POINT OF BEGINN
ing 5.19 acres according
survey recorded in Plat

55, in the Office of the CI
perior Court of Walker -

gla.

BEING part of the samr
described in Deed Book 2
in the Office of the Clerk
or Court of Walker Count
Subject to any covenant
reservations, restriction
ments of record.

Subject to any governme
subdivision ordinance or
effect thereon.

Subiect to all notes, stipu
tions, regulations, res
easements as set outonr
Subject to o 60 foot front
terline of a county roat
front from the right of v
highway, and 15 foot s
bullding setback line as

survey
4:9,16,23,30,20




Walker County Planning Office
Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

W
%ﬂ Rezone {Jconditional Use Variance [ vaviance

Current Zoaing: Raquested Changs:
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
D-330-03( B-(2-35

Wed keCo .
Applicent/Owner & Phonz: _ LOAN fc}“ibl"‘m GL‘-&H’lﬁ‘fI*Hn 7()@ _Q*?__,tt 0094
[ ' J
Sirast Name & Mumbar: lOl S Dbkld!i S‘!"
Mailing Addrass: ? 0. @L\'}é L{“qq
City, 32atz, Zip Code: Lﬂk_l:—tu?)ﬂﬂf’ : GA I0T778
Request: RQZ&?‘W«L ng‘@j oNn F\_(CIQQ Qsl lAfF\f cn
WAC Puwehild dn Gypaind, Listing

‘I Nd<trial .I/Z'ML/ s

ANMING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIOM:

D VE. TTE 5
L1 APPROVED AS SUBMITTE Cindy Askew made a motion to

I3 APPROVED WITH conDITIONS deny due to the lay of the land

and the fact that the existing park

. is not being utilized. Jon Hentz

5i6 DENIAL seconded the motion to deny.
The vote was unanimous.
Motion to deny carried.

] TABLED

i1 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

=2 [ APPROVED WITH COMDITIOMS
e j
W Leepma_ mﬂzn 5/) [as
|7 DEMIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 35-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only 2nd does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or

given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government officigl who will bz responsible for
making a racommendation or decision on the application? YES ) NO ﬁ I YES, then on 2 separate page,

please furnish the following lnformation;
A) The name of the local government officil(s) to whom cash contribution or plft was made.

B) The total dollar arouni(s) of each campalzn made by tiie applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

€) An enumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or mora made by the
appllcant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Owner:

hion0 (Wb Pivec. Diy. 30225

SAPPIJCANT/OWNER DATE




Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

4
% Rezone [ jconditional Use Variance [ variance

Current Zoning: Requestad Change:
Map & Parce] Date: Fee:
D-380- 037 S12-2z5

Applicani/Owner & Phona: Uva!\%@%\iﬁmbd’hdﬁqv 100, C!Z‘f.ao‘ﬂ
Street Mame & Nusmber: | O\ g 'DLL!L? g“r

Mailing address: 'P \¥ EG\( L“’l g

ioy, State, Zip Code: L@Fg,v\?_rp’ (A B012%

reanese RO 2001 Dngesk, on Glass Pd Wi,

WA Dusthaged Jre Qpend 0 yi (ﬁvm
%) QL‘A Q%’l& f\cb\/l(

TR ommIs ECOMMEND,
I3 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED Cindy Askew made a motion to
e = deny due to the lay of the land
Ll AFPROVED WITH CONDITIONS ... 4'thie fict thiat the existing park
] TABLED is not being utilized. Jon Hentz
LI 112072 Eﬁ' DENIAL seconded the motion to deny.
The vote was unanimous.

Motion to deny carried.

[ APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

— —— [ APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS
M een [[Vézen §/t/a0a5

[] DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicani(s) by Section 36-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only 2nd does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250,00 or more to 2 local government official who will be responsible for
malting a recommendation or decision on the application? YES O HOR(I: YES, then on 2 separate page,
please furnish the following information;

A) The name of the local government official(s) to wham cash contribution or Eitt was made.

B) The total dollar amouni(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to cach local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

€) Anenumeratlon and description of each gift having value of $250,00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Ownex:

%’L/)/M (Bl B Dy 30225

I&WI’/OM‘ER i : DME




Mg

Walker County Planning Office
Rezoite, Conditional Use Variance & » Variance Application

wi
é’ﬁ Rezone {Jconditional Use Variance 7} vaviance

, Current Zoning: Requestad Changs:
| A T

l Map & Parcel Date: ’ Fee:
’ D-330 -D3(p D (2-35 l

Applicant/Ownar & Phone: \f\mﬁ-ﬁ@g‘?«nm C’w{-h@n}h (6.924 0044
amne sstamper:_|OL S, Duler G i

Mailtog Address: ? 0. Row HyL

City, 3iats, Zio Code: LGL [:ZDW’\Q\LLF (_\A‘ %577?

a=is,

s Rezone. meuA»u - Glass R whicla
\NZLC Dw«)nﬂéﬂol o wncuz\rl Q)\(;&an
_m&MQera,l Ol

ﬁ)
m

7]
]
b
i
i

LANMMING CO SSION RECOMMENTD

D B .
[J APPROVED AS SUBMITTED Cindy Askew made a motion to

I APPROVED wiTH cowpiTions  deny due to the lay of the land
and the fact that the existing park

0 TABLED . . o
L‘ 1 e . is not being utilized. Jon Hentz
-1'1-202S Q{ DEMIAL seconded the motion to deny.
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FiMTAT DECISIOM: The .VOtE'. hetind l]I]al'lll'.IIOUS.
Motion to deny carried.

] APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

[} APPROVED WITH CONDITIOMS

[3J TABLED

[T DEMIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 35-674 of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and daes not disquelify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/ox
given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government officigl who will bz responsible for
making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES [} NO [{i. If YES, thenon 2 separate page,

please furnish the following information;
A) The name of tha local government ofiicial(s) to whom cash contribution or glit was made.

B) The tozal dollar amouni(s) of each campalgn made by tire applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

€) An enumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or mora made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signaiure of Applicant/Owner:

wwaﬁ%@ Byec Dy 3-10- 25

' PYLCANT/OWNER DATE




Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

4
% Rezone fJconditional Use Variance [ variance

Curreni Zoning: Raquesizd Change:
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
LO-38c- 037 51225

2Anplicant/Owner & Phone: %E\%ﬁp&?&ﬁmhd’hm 0 q 34 0099
Street Mame & Number: | Ol g D%u g‘(‘ >

Mailing Address: ‘? \B %0'\( HU( g

Cizy, State, 2ip Code: \ L quf\? IL!ID i e&/lt 801 Z?

Raquast: QQ 20\, pmg:;‘é)ﬂ—j oN 6[4{&5 Qd JAWUIC{/\
INY/ES pmrdnqg_e&, +o ‘Q,M{Da—v\é ) m'(lr%vjﬁ

MQL*«\QMJJ pa,vl(.

TN (9] 1 [ RE ENDATION:

I3 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED Cindy Askew made a motion to
deny due to the lay of the land

L3 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS and the fact that the existing park

0 TaBLED is not being utilized. Jon Hentz

Ll -11-207.5 ﬁ' DENIAL seconded the motion to deny.
The vote was unanimous.
QART MMISSIONERS FINAT, DECISION: Motion to deny carried.

[ APPROVED AS SUEMITTED

[3 APPROVED WITH COMDITIONS

I3 TABLED

[l DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Sectlon 36-674 of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made eicher campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250,00 or more to 2 local government official who will be responsible for
maling a recommendation or decision on the application? YES 0 MO K If YES, then on a separate page,
please furnish the following information;

&) The name of the local government official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made,

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to cach local official during the
two yeavs immediately preceding the filling of the application.

€) An enumeration and descrlptlon of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government: official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Owner:

et [t By Dy 371226

‘ Ab’z\ﬁ}mam‘fows\mz "~ DATE




WALKER COUNTY Owner: | Walker County Development
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT : Authority
AGENDA ITEM 1

Petitioner: - same

Location of 157 Glass Road
Property: = LaFayette, GA. 30728

Tax map & parcel number 0-320-036

PC Meeting Date: 4/1712025

I |

Present Zoning: | A-1 (Agricultural)

APPLICANT’S INTENT: Requesting a rezone from A-1 (Agricultural) to |
(Industrial) to expand the industrial park
DETAILS OF REQUEST: The Comprehensive Plan shows Industrial within the

Crossroads area so fthis would meet the future use.




Weiker County Planning Oféise
Fazawz, Condiziaqal Us2 Vaulanes & Vapiancs Anatisndan

;:!' flezgms Llmeditional Va2 Yarfoces ) varlzacz
e Zoning: | maquested Che |
A-| g
ey & Pavced Date | Fem
LD "A20- Rz B2 ns |

We kerCountd ;
‘& Phanz_ [ fo::)f(‘;.'_n‘-‘f-l Cua{‘lf'lf-‘r“l-i-'?

B
SICESC Mume S Etumbarer !Of g DE.LE;* gf‘
258: FP‘ 0 ﬁ;—‘{lﬁ'h{ qt‘!‘c». P
12, Zlp Codar _LE, F‘Z’Mf-"f-fﬁ" : (‘\}l.‘ 87 )?

Clow, S

' d
Baonest REZane, pragy on Alass Dol wikict,

ANAC D tngid o ‘-!’h QN].:’:'JC\Jﬂ»";-\. Iy i';‘gl.”i"r- G
0 1 ]

andaSiad Ifw_aﬂ(,

LA 0 bl R Camp|ss I B RN A L] XENATION:

03 AYEROVED AS SUBMITTEY

O AB2200ER WITH CUbLCTICNS

e 3 TARLED

0O pevua

73 APEROVED A% SUSTETTED

e O AEPROVES WITH COFDITICNS

O TabLeD

3 pEmaL

Tize fallusdeg discoours is coquices af e applizsan{s! by Sxcibon 3-670 07 D S G T fallzesng is Gor
diesloznrs peopuzzz anly 3y doss pa disnuedy kha prisize

eahier campaiga ¢#ncributons tataling $250.00 or mnrs asd, foe
t22 heal grrsarnment ofgiglmha Wit ke psnzashlz for
apSeation? ¥ES 45 NOF-‘. ¥ ¥=3, ey an » saporabs pags,

Vllsie. th peyd tao p2ais, itve yan mnds
gine £ilts heviag vabeo 47 $249.06 or moze
I2ea) a rreamsandetizn er declsan an the
gheaes fizvalzl It fllraing Siormation:

A) e eomz o4 e Yseal gawarnnieul uiiziat{s] lo whzm castt 2eatriteatizg or 210 wos mads.
S2aln made Xy tie app'icant 1o exell tozs? afdizi | urlng the

B} ‘e ozl doliar esazanily) of mach QER
twa yazes unsdinicly pracading tha filling vi ¢hz agplicatiaz

€) Anvazmezaiion e de szripliun of esct glit having valo: o2 524000 ar mors made 2 iy

#Fieant b eazh 022l gowstacasnt oéfeml Al the past tum yoars,

Siznatucz of ApEligaaliQues:

it ) fx)a:fﬁ%mk’—w( Dy, 3-12- 25

A B CANT/GWHER DATE




Zoning Map




Future Land Use Map:

———

——— Roads —— Rutilroads o Lakeser Ponds || | Crossroad Communily

—— Highways Rivers & Streams L....:E City Limits

Character Arcas

- Agtivity Center - Dorentawn Muxed Use . Histeric Milt Redevelopment Avea J50000 Resicdewtinl Redevelopnment Are
Adhvite Destenation Digtect Estate Ressdential T | Diedustera! Revrsil Resufontial
Agricalture / Furestry - Faiyyland Proper Lookout Meuntun: Neighfrorhod Sclout
Airport Gutaiwav Corvidur - Ml Village Town Center

County Suburbean Greenspase 7/ Conservsinon Ara Missionary Ridge Resuferetiaf Traditrsst Neightorhood
Downtown Business Didect Hestoric Dawntonn: Mived Use



2622-2032 Welker County loint Comprehensive Alan

Inclustrial: Chickamauga, LaFaystts,
Rossville, Walker County

Description: Land use that may be o single building er
G concentretion of owliidings for th: purposs of
manufocturing, assembly, pracessing, end distribution
activities. These locotions are where nolse, particiiace
matter, vibratien, smoke, dust, gos, fumes, odors,
radiagtion, kigher volume of teansfer truck trafiic, end
oiner uses that moy be considered G Auiscnc: not
canigined on-site alone.

Figurs T6. Industrizs off of Highway 27, Walker Caunty

Suggested Development Strotegy:

1. When poisibls, futurs devslopmeant should refiect 3 campus of unified buildings cver 3 single
business.

2. Locata compliimantary industries nzar each cthar.
3. Inciude commercial/r=tzil services to serve worksrs
4. Include on-site stoermwater d=tention or retantion

5. Reutilizz vacant manufacturing businesses when possible; if unfeasible, demolish the sxisting
building for naw davslopment.

6. Infili vacant sites to b= sasier served by existing power, water, end sewer infrastructurs.
7. Frovide standards for signaze to prevent visual cluttar

8. Instz’l high-speecd internss

9. FProvide altemative access roads

10. Maintain znd upgrads roads, install trafiic fights, and improve utiiities,

L1, Wherzver possible, connsct to regional nscwork of gresnspace =nd trails zvailzbls to
pedsstrizns, bicyclizzs, and other non-vehicuiar means of transportation.

Lond uses:
¢ Manufacturing
¢ Technolozy parks/campus and rasearch facilities
s Wholesale trzds
¢ Distribution
¢ Assembiy manufacturing

2G232-2032 Walker County Joint Comprehensive Alan

Koy Word Objectives: Manufacturing, Technology parksfcompus resagrch facilities, Wheissaie trade,
Distribution, Assembly Manufacturing, Recrearional activities, Infilf



2022-2022 Walker County Joint Comprahensive Plan

Crossroads Community:  Chickamauga
and Walker County

Description: Rurgl  unincorsorceed  historic
communitics locoted @t the inrersection of moin
thoroughfares. Crossrood Communities cantains o
mixture of uses, such es single family residential end
commerdial, but public/institutian ectivities, such os
¢ fire depoctment.  Thess locotions are typically
cutamabile focusea, iacking infrestructurs nesdad
Jar pedestricn mobility. Commercic! reteil in these

Figurz 50. Willanow Commuaity, Walkar County  jocasions often providss heusehold goods cad
Georgsa groceries, Other Gotivities ofesn includs focal retail

sentices

Suggested Development Strategy:

L. Provide inczntives or revise local dz=velopnient regulations for be swtification, landscaping, and
signag=.

2. Provide nezded infrastructure to support additiona! commercizl activitizs and residentiz!
devslopment at the Crossroads Community, preventing fragmenting the surrounding rural
landsczpe. Infrastructurs improvements may includs high spe=d inte mes, watsr and sswerage,
znd sidavrzlks.

3. Encourzgzsmall r=tzil esmblishments over biz box storss.

4. Peemit conzervation subdivision dssigns that prozect nezrby open space.

5. Whsneverpossible, connzct to regional network of sresnspace end trails available to p=destrians,
bicyclists, end other non-vahicular mezns of transportation.

Land uses:
»  Commercial
*  Residentia’

Public/Institutions!

Ney Werd Objectives: Moain throughfares intersections, Locei retail commercial, Residential, Cluster or
conservation subaivision, new infrostruciure, improved infraostructurs, pedestrion frieadiy, Sense of plaes,

Trailz.



CONSIDERATION OF ZONING CRITERIA

. Existing land uses and zoning of nearby property: The zoning of the nearby property is currently zoned

R-2 (Residential), A-1 (Agricultural) & I (Industrial)

2. Suitability of the subject property for the zone purposed: Yes

3. Extent to which property values of the subject property are diminished by the particular zoning
restrictions: None

4. Extent to which the destruction of property values of the subject property promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public: None that we know of.

5. Relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property owner:
More industry to the area would mean more jobs.

6. Whether the subject property has reasonable economic use as currently zoned: Yes

7. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land development
in the vicinity of the property: The tax records show the property has been owned by Walker County
Development Authority since October 2022.

8. Whether the proposed zoning will be a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of
adjacent and nearby property: It would be.

9. Whether the proposed zoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property: It would not.

10. Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policies and intent of the
Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map shows industrial.

11. Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome
use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. It could increase traffic.

12. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the

property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal:
This would expand the current industrial park to the south.



WALKER COUNTY Owner: Walker County Development
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT Authority
AGENDA ITEM

Petitioner: same

Location of 0 Glass Road
Property: LaFayette, GA. 30728

Tax map & parcel number 0-320-037

PC Meeting Date: 4/17/2025

Present Zoning: | A-1 (Agricultural)

APPLICANT’S INTENT: Requesting a rezone from A-1 (Agricultural) to |
(Industrial) to expand the industrial park
DETAILS OF REQUEST: The Comprehensive Plan shows Industrial within the

Crossroads area so this would meet the future use.




Walker County Planning Offics

- -

Rzzons, Conditionn] Use Vardanes & Yastanee Apolisation

% ]
}'%1 Fxzonz [ICongicenz] Uss Vasiazy Availanzs

Currant Zening il Requzsizd Chznge: f
Piap & Farce| Digingy Pz
| O 1_—'}9[; A7 Se12-75 |

Wl ko G, .
pat- M sbirgah

AnolizaadfQwner & Phona L WA '_Ifgli-:?kﬁkiﬁ,-l:‘—g. Ll 3 I
™Y Q:J. /
Sires: Nam:z &Momben E{wi. i DL\..H iy

Moo sdtrems_ Y. 0 Cavy MU L .
Qigy, Ete, 2p coser Y 0 P H.P. oA ZA72%

Brguase OrJ?.ﬁﬂd g')v‘ﬂ?ﬂs’:{"l. 37 é\{ﬁ‘g.‘}. Qd [J\Jﬁl.CII:ﬂ'
el :;:;u_;.quag_pc_l T .Q}{.Pa-a(L QJHK“H‘-’E}

i'{' ] (‘!.-'J. (.‘i-.';_“;_&ur :"]a_.l.,f‘i( o

DLapplms CONMMIZT I 220 TR T VA

— 1 ANSROVED 43 SUBNITTED

e [T APPROVED VNTL QOLISITIONS

3 1°5LED

O] DEsiarn

EQRRT OF CQUMAITSIONERS TRAL DECISION,

. [ ASPROVIO A5 SUBIMITTED

——

w [ AMEROVED WITH COUIDITI00S

0 TazczEn

—

El pErmaL

T2 talloaing divelzmce 2 raguned of law agplicant(a) by Sesilan 35-67a of 0.E5.A The fedule i fur

diszlosars purpsies ol and dozs nol dizdnalify the paciton,
Faaes, Bxae y3u e eliber tacgaign eanksholizss titsling $359.00 nr m=ze 1disc

F$256.00 6r Tar2 £33 Lol gavernmsnt o€zl whio will ba resaonsible f-¢
MG }'5{ WYZ3, 1o on 2 wopacats page,

Wilkin the past s
Linrn 3Cts Baviog valuz o
M2IL & raceminealaiam oo dezlshon oo e applizacizn? s [

Plezss fuseiah s follavdos latcemation;
A) Th: nams af the lozal gawsrneaant Gliicizl{s] bs wam ol ezl ot pif was 2l
B] The mial dsltar amuaiis) of 2och ampzign made by the epplizaac 1o comh L2eal eFsisl duclng the
baan yeary mmaditaly grocading e [Fiay af the applicstion.

€} 2n ranrersiea and Are=ltion c€ansh g4t basing vale ol 25001 = mace raads Lyl

fenlicant £a 2zch Real gaveramenr offielz! withia B2 past two yracx

Sizivrz of fppltost Vease

Qf?'ﬁ@@/&ﬁm, B Dy 31226
DATE

Aifﬂ,mm TfOWHER




Zoning Map:




Future Land Use Map:

&y LAY e
Noble L4k '
/ Py ,
j / :
f“‘[._l

D

— Roads ~ —+— Ruilroads .. Lakes ¢ Ponds i-_:-_._] Crossroad Communily
——— Higlways Rivers & Streams f____'_'{ City Lintits
Character Arcas
u Adtivity Center - Downtawn Muowd Use ~ Historie Mill Redevelopment Avea - Resideitiand Resdovelopmient Arca
Adtaale Destination Distrwct Estare Residenta! U Dadustaal Raral Resulential
Agrieultuse /£ Forestry Failvplamd Proper Lockout Mountui: Nesgliborfeosd Suf:onl
Airport Gteway Corriddor ML ¥ilbage Turn Center
Connty Sulwirben | Greenspase / Conservation Avng Missionary Ridge Resulortiaf - Teaditwnad Naghberhood

Downtown Business Didtnict Hrstorie Dawnstoies Mivad Use



20322-2032 Welker County Joint Comgrehensive Plan

Indlustrial: Chickamauga, LaFaystts,
Rossville, Walker County

Description; Land use the: may be o single building er
G concentration af buildings for the gurpose of
manufacturing, assambly, processing, end distribution
gciivitias. These lozations ore where nolse, particulate
mGtter, vibration, smoke, dust, gos, fumes odors,
rediction, higher valume of tronsfer truck trGjjic, cad
cther uses thot moy be consideres G auisencs not
contgined an-site elone.

Figurs 76. Industries off of Highwey 27, Walker County

Suggested Development Strategy:

1. When pessibls, futurs devsloprent should reflect a campus of unified buildings over a single
businass.

2. Locstz complimentary industries nsar each cthar.
3. Inciude commercial/rztzil services to serve worksrs
4. Include cn-site stermwater detention or retantion

5. Reutilizz vecent manufacturing busineszes when pessible; if unfeasible, demolizh the =xisting
buiiding for new devslopment.

6. Infili vaczntsites to bz easier served by existing power, wazer, and sewer infrastructurs.
7. Provide standards for signaze to prevens visual clustzr

8. Instz’l high-speed interns:

9. Provide altemative access roads

10. Mzintain and upgrads roads, install traffic fights, and improve utilities,

L. Whersver possible, connsct to regionzl nstwork of gresnspace =znd trails zvailzble to
pedsstrizns, bicyclists, and ether non-vehicuiar means of transportation.

Land uses:
¢ Manufacuring
*  Techno'osy parks/campus and research facilities
¢ Wholesale trade
¢ [Distribution
e Assembly manufacturing

2632-2032 Walker County Joint Comgrehensive Flan

i

Key Ward Objectives: Manufacturing, Techaclogy parksfcampus research fachiities, Wholesale trade,
Discribution, Assembly Manufocruring, Recreationel eotivities, Infili



2022-2032 Walker County Joint Comprahensive Flan

Figurs 50. Villanow Community, wWalkar County
Georgia

Suggested Development Strataay:

Crassroads Community:  Chickamauga
and Walker County

Description: Fura!l  wnincoroorated  Wistoric
cemmunities focated et the intersection of main
thoroughferes. Crossraad Communities contains o
mixture of uses, such @s single family residentiol and
commergial, but pubiicfinstitution ectivities, such a5
¢ jire department.  These locations are typically
cutomatile focused, focking infrestructure pesdad
jar pedestrinn mobility. Lommearcici retail in thess
locations often provides houszhold. goods and
groceries, Other aorivities oft2n jnclude foco! resail
senvices

L. Provide incentives or revise local dzvelopment rezulations for besutification, landscaping, and

signegs.

2. Provide nezded infrastructure to support additiona’ commercizl activicizs and residentiz!
development at the Crossroads Community, preventing fragmenting the surrounding rural
landsczpe. Infrastructure improvements may includs high spesd intemnet, watsr and sswerage,

and sidewzlks.

3. Encourzgzsmall rzzzil eswblishments over big box storss.

4. Pzemit conservation subdivision designs that protect nearby open space.

5. Whsnever possible, connzect to regional network of sreznspace end trzils available to p=destrians,
bicyclists, 2nd other non-wehicular mezns of transportation.

Land uses:
*  Commercial
*  Residentia’
*  Pub’ic/Institutionzl

Key Word Objectives: Muain throughferes intersections, Local retail commercial, Residential, Cluster or
conservation subdivision, new infrostructure, improved infrastructurs, cedestrion Jfriendfy, Sense of place,

Trailz.



10.

ja ¥

12,

CONSIDERATION OF ZONING CRITERIA

Existing land uses and zoning of nearby property: The zoning of the nearby property is currently zoned
R-2 (Residential), A-1 (Agricultural) & I (Industrial)

Suitability of the subject property for the zone purpose: Yes

Extent to which property values of the subject property are diminished by the particular zoning
restrictions: None

Extent to which the destruction of property values of the subject property promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public: None that we know of.

Relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property owner:
More industry to the area would mean more jobs.

Whether the subject property has reasonable economic use as currently zoned: Yes

Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land development
in the vicinity of the property: The tax records show the property has been owned by Walker County
Development Authority since October 2022.

Whether the proposed zoning will be a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of
adjacent and nearby property: It would be.

Whether the proposed zoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property: [t would not.

Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policies and intent of the
Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map shows industrial.

Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome
use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. It could increase traffic.

Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the
property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal:
This would expand the current industrial park to the south.



RESOLUTION R-038-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
APPOINT A MEMBER OF THE WALKER COUNTY WATER AND SEWERAGE
AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, one of the duties delegated to the Chairwoman of the Board is to appoint
members to all committees of the Board with the approval of the Board; and

WHEREAS, Georgia Governor George Busbee approved Act 421 on March 23, 1977
creating the Walker County Water and Sewerage Authority, a political subdivision of the State
of Georgia and a public corporation; and

WHEREAS, Section 2 of Act 421 governs the appointment and term of service of
members to the Walker County Water and Sewerage Authority (“Authority”); and

WHEREAS, Section 2 (b) of Act 421 grants the “Commissioner of Walker County”
eligibility to be appointed to serve as a member of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, Section 2 (d) of Act 421 says the “Commissioner of Walker County” shall
serve as the Chair of the Authority if the Commissioner is a member of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, Chairwoman Teems desires to serve as a member of the Authority and is
duly qualified to serve as Chair of the Authority;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that the appointment of Angie Teems to the Walker County Water and Sewerage
Authority for a term that began June 1, 2025 and concludes May 31, 2030 is approved.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEQO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for

from Commissioner ;
second by Commissioner ;

(SEAL) R -
and upon the question the vote is ayes,

nays to the Resolution.




RESOLUTION R-039-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
APPOINT A MEMBER OF THE LAFAYETTE-WALKER COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, one of the duties delegated to the Chairwoman of the Board is to appoint
members to all committees of the Board with the approval of the Board; and

WHEREAS, 0.C.G.A § 20-5-42 (a) provides that a county board of trustees shall
consist of at least one appointee from each governmental agency financially supporting the
library on a regular basis; and

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 20-5-42 (b) provides that a regional board of library trustees
shall consist of trustees serving on member county boards who are appointed to the regional
board by each county board for a term specified in writing pursuant to the constitution and
bylaws of the library system; and

WHEREAS, a vacancy will soon exist on the LaFayette-Walker County Public Library
Board due to the expiration of the term for Kaye Thurman; and

WHEREAS, Chairwoman Teems submits the following appointment to serve on the
LaFayette-Walker County Public Library Board:

Kaye Thurman - for a term beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2028

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that the appointment of Kaye Thurman is approved.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
from Commissioner :

second by Commissioner ;
and upon the question the vote is ayes,

nays to the Resolution.

(SEAL)




April 28, 2025

Ms. Angie Teems, Walker County Board Chair
PO Box 445
LaFayette, GA 30728

Dear Commissioner Teems: T

As a governmental funding agency that supports the LaFayette-Walker County Public Library, the Rossville
Public Library, and the Chickamauga Public Library, the Walker County Commission makes a total of six
appointments to the local Library Boards of Trustees. According to law, these appointments are set up on
a rotating basis. The Constitutions of these Boards of Trustees states that

1. The term of office is three years, starting July 1
2, No member may serve on this board for more than four successive three-year terms of office.

There are two appointments we are asking you to make at your next meeting.

Appointee Library Board Term

Kaye Thurman(re-appointment) LaFayette-Walker Public Library Board July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2028
1223 E. Reed Road

LaFayette, GA 30728

Randy Pittman (new appointment) Rossville Public Library Board July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2028
441 Talley Avenue
Rossville, GA 30741

We ask that you make these appointments before July 1st, and that you notify the appointees and the
library, in writing, in accordance with law. The next meeting of the LaFayette-Walker County Public
Library Board of Trustees is on July 28, 2025 and the Rossville Public Library's next meeting is July 29,
2025.

Thank you for your thoughtful attention to these important appointments to represent the citizens of
Walker County on the public library boards of trustees.

Sincerely,

U><J€ e /é Ve -'é'?i""bwifi.

Lecia Eubanks, Director
Cherokee Regional Library System

m, Cherokee Regional Library System
mmemw.Dade | Chickamauga | LaFayette-Walker | Rossville

305 South Duke Street | LaFayette, Georgia 30728 | 0:706.638.2992 | f:706.638.4028 | chrl.org




RESOLUTION R-040-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
APPOINT A MEMBER OF THE ROSSVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, one of the duties delegated to the Chairwoman of the Board is to appoint
members to all committees of the Board with the approval of the Board; and

WHEREAS, 0.C.G.A § 20-5-42 (a) provides that a county board of trustees shall
consist of at least one appointee from each governmental agency financially supporting the
library on a regular basis; and

WHEREAS, 0.C.G.A. § 20-5-42 (b) provides that a regional board of library trustees
shall consist of trustees serving on member county boards who are appointed to the regional
board by each county board for a term specified in writing pursuant to the constitution and
bylaws of the library system; and

WHEREAS, a vacancy will soon exist on the Rossville Public Library Board due to the
expiration of the term for Lorie Connell; and

WHEREAS, Chairwoman Teems submits the following appointment to serve on the
Rossville Public Library Board:

Randy Pittman - for a term beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2028

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that the appointment of Randy Pittman is approved.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
_ from Commissioner ;
second by Commissioner g
and upon the question the vote is ayes,
nays to the Resolution.

(SEAL)




April 28, 2025

Ms. Angie Teems, Walker County Board Chair
PO Box 445
LaFayette, GA 30728

Dear Commissioner Teems: :

As a governmental funding agency that supports the LaFayette-Waiker County Public Library, the Rossville
Public Library, and the Chickamauga Public Library, the Walker County Commission makes a total of six
appointments to the local Library Boards of Trustees. According to law, these appointments are set up on
a rotating basis. The Constitutions of these Boards of Trustees states that

1. The term of office is three years, starting July 1
2. No member may serve on this board for more than four successive three-year terms of office.

There are two appointmen?é we are asking you to make at your next meeting.

Appointee Library Board Term
Kaye Thurman(re-appointment) LaFayette-Walker Public Library Board July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2028

1223 E. Reed Road
LaFayette, GA 30728

Randy Pittman (new appointment) Rossville Public Library Board July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2028
441 Talley Avenue
Rossville, GA 30741

We ask that you make these appointments before July 1st, and that you notify the appointees and the
library, in writing, in accordance with law. The next meeting of the LaFayette-Walker County Public
Library Board of Trustees is on July 28, 2025 and the Rossville Public Library's next meeting is July 29,
2025.

Thank you for your thoughtful attention to these important appointments to represent the citizens of
Walker County on the public library boards of trustees.

Sincerely,
-

LY I
A

Lecia Eubanks, Director
Cherokee Regional Library System

m, Cherokee Regional Library System
ssmemm. Dade | Chickamauga | LaFayette-Walker | Rossville

305 South Duke Street | LaFayette, Georgia 30728 | o:706,638.2992 | f:706.638.4028 | chtl.erg




FY26 Operating Grant Award Budget Worksheet

Court Name

Lookout Mountain Circuit Drug Court

Budget Worksheet Category Line Item Total Budgeted
Personnel Program Coordinator $62,067.00 $261,611
Fringe Benefits $18,153.00
Program Case Manager $44,117.00
Fringe Benefits $10,587.00
Program Case Manager $44,117.00
Fringe Benefits $15,856.00
Lab Technician $24,960.00
Fringe Benefits $8,397.00
Law Enforcement $24,960.00
Fringe Benefits $8,397.00
Contract Services Treatment Provider $50,000.00 $59,000
DCS $9,000.00
Law Enforcement $0.00
Lab Technician $0.00
Drug Testing Supplies Monitoring $960.00 $17,283
Lab Tests $2,500.00
Onsite Devices $5,200.00
Reagents $8,623.00
Supplies /Other Costs $0.00 $0
Equipment $0.00 $0
In State Training and Travel 2025 CACJ Conference $5,500.00 $5,500
Transportation Funding $0.00 $0
Total Budget: $343,394
Match: $60,599

CACIJ Funding Committee Note:

None.




RESOLUTION R-041-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
AMEND THE FEE SCHEDULE FOR VARIOUS COUNTY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the Board has the authority to set fees, pursuant to the Walker County
Code of Ordinances Chapter 1, Section 1-20; and

WHEREAS, the Board periodically implements rate changes at the landfill in order to
maintain solid waste services; and

WHEREAS, the Board periodically implements rate changes at the animal shelter in
order to maintain animal services;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that the fees set forth in “Exhibit A” and “Exhibit B” attached hereto shall be made a
part of the County fee schedule, effective July 1, 2025.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 202s5.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
_ from Commissioner
second by Commissioner i
and upon the question the vote is ayes,
nays to the Resolution.

»

(SEAL)




WALKER COUNTY LANDFILL
MATERIAL LIST AND PRICE GUIDE
2023 Rates and Proposed July 1, 2025, Rates

el em e | h
100 Batteries 3 300 % 4.00 33% each
100 A |Batteries (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 400 | $ 5.00 25% each
200 Mattress & Boxsprings $ 1450 | $ 17.00 17% each
200A  |Mattresses & Boxsprings (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 16.00 | $ 20.00 25% each
M.1 Backhoe Bucket of Mulch $ 2500 | % 25.00 0% scoop
M.1A  |Backhoe Bucket of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 3000 % 30.00 0% scoop
M.5 1/2 Backhoe Bucket of Mulch $ 15.00 | $ 15.00 0% scoop
M.5A  |1/2 Backhoe Bucket of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 2000 % 20.00 0% scoop
M2 Loader Bucket of Mulch 5 60.00| $ 60.00 0% scoop
M2A Loader Bucket of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 65.00 | $ 65.00 0% scoop
™ Tandem Load of Mulch $ 22500 $ 235.00 4% load
TMA  |Tandem Load of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 230.00 | $ 240.00 4% load
02 Auto Car Tires (up to 14") $ 4001 % 4.50 13% each
02A Auto Car Tires (up to 14")(OUT OF COUNTY) $ 450 | § 5.00 1% each
03 Auto, Light Truck Tires (15"-18") 3 550( % 6.00 9% each
03A Auto, Light Truck Tires (15"-18")(OUT OF COUNTY) $ 6.00($ 6.50 8% each
04 Large Truck Tires (19"-20") $ 850 % 9.00 6% each
04A Large Truck Tires (19"-20")(OUT OF COUNTY) % 9.00| $ 9.50 6% each
05 Large Truck Tires (22" & up) $ 17.50 | § 19.00 9% each
05A Large Truck Tires (22" & up) (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 18.00 | $ 20.00 1% each
05T All Tire Sizes (13" and UP: loads > 40 tires 3 340.00 | § 350.00 3% ton
06 Tires on Rims (Extra Charge) $ 6.00] % 7.00 17% each
06A Tires on Rims (Extra Charge) (OUT OF COUNTY) 5 7001 % 8.00 14% each
15 Farm Tractor Tires $ 80.00 | $ 80.00 0% each
15A Farm Tractor Tires (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 8500 | § 85.00 0% each
[Minimum Fee $ 6.00 | $ 7.00 17% load
[Minimum Fee (Out of County) $ 6.00 | $ 8.00 33% load
01 Household Garbage (MSW) ] 49.00 | $ 56.00 14% ton
08 [Municipal Household Garbage (MSW) $ 46.00 | § 53.00 15% ton
09 Animal Remains ($17.50 per 100 pounds) $ 320.00 | $ 320.00 0% ton
09A Animal Remains ($18.50 per 100 pounds){OUT OF COUNTY) | § 325.00 | $ 325.00 0% ton
11 White Goods (anything with a refrigerant system) $ 23501 % 25.00 6% each
11A White Goods (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 2500 % 28.00 12% each
12 HOUSEHOLD GARBAGE (MSW: OUT OF COUNTY) 3 56.50 | § 60.00 6% ton
1900 |Brush/Trees (Brush that can be chipped) $ 3000( % 35.00 17% ton
Brush/Trees (Minimum Fee up to 600 Ibs) $ 10.00 | $ 10.00 0% load
1905 Brush/ Trees (OUT OF COUNTY) ) 3500 $ 40.00 14% ton
1910  |Stumps greater than 30 inches in diameter % 2500 | % 25.00 0% each
2000 |C & D to Transfer Station $ 49.00 ] $ 56.00 14% ton
3000 C & D to Transfer Station (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 56.50 | § 60.00 6% ton
40 cubic yard (yd®) Box < 6 tons 5 % $ 500.00 each
Couches/ Loveseats 3 - $ 10.00 each




WALKER COUNTY LANDFILL
MATERIAL LIST AND PRICE GUIDE
2023 Rates and Proposed July 1, 2025, Rates

o e s | | AT
100 Batteries $ 3.00| 8 4.00 33% each
100 A |Batteries (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 400 | $% 5.00 25% each
200 Mattress & Boxsprings 3 1450 | § 17.00 17% each
200A  |Mattresses & Boxsprings (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 16.00 | $ 20.00 25% each
M.1 Backhoe Bucket of Mulch 3 2500 | $ 25.00 0% scoop
M.1A  |Backhoe Bucket of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 30,00 | $ 30.00 0% scoop
M.5 1/2 Backhoe Bucket of Mulch % 15.00 | $ 15.00 0% scoop
M.5A  |1/2 Backhoe Bucket of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 2000 % 20.00 0% scoop
M2 Loader Bucket of Mulch $ 60.00 | § 60.00 0% scoop
M2A Loader Bucket of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 65.00 | § 65.00 0% scoop
™ Tandem Load of Mulch 3 22500 | $ 235.00 4% load
TMA  |Tandem Load of Mulch (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 230.00 | § 240.00 4% load
02 Auto Car Tires (up to 14") 3 400 % 4.50 13% each
02A Auto Car Tires (up to 14")(OUT OF COUNTY) 3 450 | % 5.00 1% each
03 Auto, Light Truck Tires (15"-18") $ 550 % 6.00 9% each
03A Auto, Light Truck Tires (15"-18")(OUT OF COUNTY) $ 6.00 | $ 6.50 8% each
04 Large Truck Tires (19"-20") $ 850§ 9.00 6% each
04A  |Large Truck Tires (19"-20")(QUT OF COUNTY) $ 9.00|$ 9.50 6% each
05 Large Truck Tires (22" & up) $ 1750 | § 19.00 9% each
05A Large Truck Tires (22" & up) (OUT OF COUNTY) $ 18.00 | § 20.00 1% each
05T All Tire Sizes (13" and UP: loads > 40 tires $ 340.00 ] $ 350.00 3% ton
06 Tires on Rims (Extra Charge) $ 6.00|$% 7.00 17% each
0BA Tires on Rims (Extra Charge) (OUT OF COUNTY) ] 700|% 8.00 14% each
15 Farm Tractor Tires $ 80.00| % 80.00 0% each
15A Farm Tractor Tires (OUT OF COUNTY) S 85.00 | $ 85.00 0% each
|Minimum Fee 3 600 (% 7.00 17% load
’Minimum Fee (Out of County) 3 6.00|% 8.00 33% load
01 Household Garbage (MSW) 3 4900 | § 56.00 14% ton
o8 Municipal Household Garbage (MSW) $ 46.00 | $ 53.00 15% ton
09 Animal Remains ($17.50 per 100 pounds) 3 32000 $ 320.00 0% ton
09A Animal Remains ($18.50 per 100 pounds){OUT OF COUNTY) | $ 325.00 | § 325.00 0% ton
1 White Goods (anything with a refrigerant system) 3 2350 | % 25.00 6% each
11A White Goods (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 2500 | $ 28.00 12% each
12 HOUSEHOLD GARBAGE (MSW: OUT OF COUNTY) $ 56.50 | § 60.00 6% ton
1900  |Brush/Trees (Brush that can be chipped) $ 30.00 | & 35.00 17% ton
Brush/Trees (Minimum Fee up to 600 Ibs) $ 1000 | § 10.00 0% load
18905 |Brush/ Trees (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 3500 | % 40.00 14% ton
1910  |Stumps greater than 30 inches in diameter $ 2500 | $ 25.00 0% each
2000 |C & D to Transfer Station $ 49.00 | § 56.00 14% ton
3000 C & D to Transfer Station (OUT OF COUNTY) 3 56.50 | § 60.00 6% ton
40 cubic yard (yd®) Box < 6 tons - s 500.00 each
Couches/ Loveseats - $ 10.00 each




WALKER COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER

PRICE GUIDE
2023 Rates and Proposed July 1, 2025, Rates

Ll (fal;‘;ﬁf::e J:I‘)? g:ZGSSRTTE FERZENT UNIT
Animal Surrender - unaltered $ 10.00 | $ 25.00 150% each
Animal Surrender - altered $ 10.00 | $ 10.00 0% each
Animal Reclaim - previously spayed & neutered $ 25.00($% 25.00 0% each
Animal Reclaim - owner agrees to spay & neuter $ 80.00 (% 25.00 -69% each
Animal Reclaim - owner refuses to spay & neuter $ 150.00 | § 25.00 -83% each
Adoption - Cat $ 50.00 | $ 50.00 0% each
Adoption - Dog $ 100.00 | § 50.00 -50% each
Adoption - Kittens $ 50.00 | $ 75.00 50% each
Adoption - Puppies $ 100.00 | $ 75.00 -25% each
Sit:;s;?t::: - other pets - Guinea Pigs, Hamsters, Goats, $ 50.00 | $ 25.00 50% -
Microchipping $ 10.00 | § 10.00 0% each
g:;o:t‘i::: - other pets - Guinea Pigs, Hamsters, Goats, $ 50.00 | § 25.00 50% anch
Boarding $ - $ 10.00 100% each
Boarding - Bite Quarantine $ - $ 15.00 100% each/per day
Eﬁ;?r;i:srsoiidszgunt - Active Duty/Military Veterans and $ } $ 35.00 100% —
Golden Years Savings - Seniors 3 - $ 35.00 100% each




RESOLUTION R-042-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE WALKER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO
FORGIVE BACK TAXES FOR PROPERTY PURCHASED BY THE AMERICAN
LEGION POST 339

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the American Legion is a nonprofit veterans organization that provides
critical support and services to veterans, their families and the community; and

WHEREAS, the American Legion Post 339 purchased a 0.2 acre tract adjacent to their
existing property located at Tax Map & Parcel Number 1-038-083; and

WHEREAS, the previous property owner owed $3,070.85 in delinquent taxes; and

WHEREAS, the County recognizes the valuable contributions the American Legion
makes to the community and wishes to support its continued operation and mission; and

WHEREAS, the forgiveness of these back taxes is in the public interest and aligns with
the County’s values of honoring and supporting veterans;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that the County hereby authorizes the forgiveness of all outstanding back property
taxes in the amount of three thousand seventy dollars and eighty five cents ($3,070.85) for Tax
Map & Parcel Number 1-038-083 and hereby authorizes the Walker County Tax Commissioner
and all other appropriate officials of Walker County to take all necessary actions to reflect the
forgiveness of said taxes and update the official records accordingly.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEQO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
_ fromCommissioner |
second by Commissioner y
(SEAL) and upon the question the vote is ayes,
nays to adopt the Resolution.




RESOLUTION R-043-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE WALKER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO
AUTHORIZE BANKING AT REGIONS BANK

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined it is in the best interest of the County to
establish a banking relationship with REGIONS BANK (“Bank”);

THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Walker County Board of Commissioners
that the Chairwoman of the Board, the Chief Finance Officer or the Deputy Chief Financial
Officer, each acting alone, are hereby authorized to establish accounts as depositories of funds
of the County for checking accounts, savings accounts, money market accounts, and
investments, including certificates of deposits, on and subject to such terms and conditions in
the Bank Agreements as such officer, acting alone, may from time to time agree with the Bank;
and

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED the Chairwoman of the Board, the Chief Finance
Officer or the Deputy Chief Financial Officer are authorized to deposit funds; withdraw funds:
write checks; make electronic transfers; and generally conduct all necessary banking
transactions on behalf of Walker County in accordance with the terms of the account and the
banking resolution;

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED all checks, drafts, and other instruments for the
payment of money drawn or accepted by the County for payment to deposit or withdraw funds
from the accounts shall be signed on behalf of the County by the Chairwoman of the Board,
Finance Director, or the County Clerk (hereafter referred to individually as an “Authorized
Officer” or collectively as the “Authorized Officers”); and any withdrawal of funds shall require
signatures of two Authorized Officers;

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk is hereby authorized and
directed to certify to the Bank that this resolution has been duly adopted; and the County Clerk
shall further certify to the Bank the names and specimen signatures of the present Authorized
Officers, and, if and when any change be made in the personnel or the officers, the fact of such
change and the name and specimen signature of each new Authorized Officer;

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Bank is requested and authorized to honor,
receive, certify, or pay any instrument signed or endorsed in accordance with these resolutions
and the certification provided for by these resolutions then in effect, including any such
instrument drawn or endorsed to the personal order of, or presented for negotiation or
encashment by any Authorized Officer signing or endorsing the same;

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution and each certification herein
provided for shall remain in full force and effect, and the Bank is authorized and requested to
rely and act thereon until it shall receive either a certified copy of a further resolution of the
Board of Commissioners amending or rescinding this resolution or a further certification of the
names and signatures of the Authorized Officers.



SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST:

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk

(SEAL)

WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for

from Commissioner ,

second by Commissioner ;

and upon the question the vote is ayes,
nays to adopt the Resolution.




RESOLUTION R-044-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR PAYROLL SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, over 400 full-time employees work for Walker County Government and
receive payment for their services either bi-weekly or monthly; and

WHEREAS, modern payroll systems streamline the payroll process and improve
productivity, accountability and access to information while reducing labor costs; and

WHEREAS, the county’s Human Resources and Accounting departments have
reviewed payroll systems available from three separate vendors; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends contracting with Paycor because its’ system is user
friendly, has a multitude of human resources functions and is cost effective;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that the Chairwoman is authorized to sign all documents necessary to transition
payroll services to Paycor, per the terms set forth in “Exhibit A;”

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the first payment to Paycore shall be attributed to
Department 1535 — Data Processing/MIS, line item 521300.95 - Technical Contractual
Services, in the fiscal S2025 budget.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEQO

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for

from Commissioner

second by Commissioner :
and upon the question the vote is ayes,

nays to the Resolution.

(SEAL)




v .

- =

. A T 5 M g

as
o — = =
. — £ [ ¥ T - : "= )
. AN TR L Sy 1 N e e O}k " ! FRL X ol SR : _
B . . - - l 3 ) 3 ] j . ,
5 - R 2 . XS oY > | £ 5 :
Wl | . - ~ . . r : . = . : . .
o 27 5 - = <A . e = - - - = _M e "
: : ! g = : r Lo . [, R |
b S . 1 '
o s : P ~ . 3 . - = el _— - =
- - = v - x L 3 : i : . . :
n 2 - 4 el | i 1'% » - _m:_ =
- L\ | o} ..». ‘ .
. <1 .,,.,,.. - e - = Nt ey L ..:r l . .. :..
. ..... ..._ .__ .T , ,.... .
.\...4: I;. ... . . -. -. ... __. _— “__ . ...IU- . .
. . ‘ . .. .. '. . ......, .4 .
1... . . .(.. . . . n . , . . <
. _....- . .. _ .
. I .l ..1 |
. ..- l. _..Fr

41 A Paychex® Company

L1 y «\ 1 &
" AN T B -
T 3 Hl“...c“fi}..?

P

)r Partnership Pro

osal

. T I
- = >




Why Partner with Paycor?

= About Paycor
= Paycor Proposal
=  Contract Terms
= Current State :
= Future State with Paycor v g e
= Paycor Products _
= Recruiting
= Onboarding " ]
" Time & Atendnc You're In
= Payroll Your Paycor Success Team:

- el good hands!

= Reports and Analytics
= Risk Management
= What our Clients Say
= Implementation Team
= Implementation Calendar
= Paycor Client Support

nmﬂ_w\ Pujols

Principal Enterprise Sales
Consultant



About Paycor PAYCHEX + Paycor

= NYSE: PAYX

= 800,000 clients across the US Sl RO - |

= Pay 1in 11 private sector U.S. ©) i deers reresoress smrese s s ore- R
employees A e

= Full spectrum HR advisory and folgubcesl e T R B

employee solutions

= Almost 90 years of combined
experience in payroll & HCM
technology - Paycor was founded in
1990 and Paychex was founded in 1971

= Paycor purchased by Paychex in 2025

= Paycor is a standalone business unit
and is the sole technology for e W oo

AL Artasly

e Company News

Tax Dozument Status

s



Proposal

i County of Watser
n Marthly Fees
m< ” n _ Service Unit w 5 Cost Por 5 Totsl
& Paythen” Company _ HCM Cor Per Active Employee 450 3588 5225000 _
T Troaes 1
Chech Sraffing Intlugea o
County of Walker Prepared by Carly Pujols Eectronic Cotam Dats Fie Imciuged o
107 5 Duiw S5t Empiayee inport Included ]
LaFayote GA 30728 Gereral Ledger Report Included L]
(706} 6381437 R Support Cor Included o
WR Support Cor O Dermandd included °
Labor Datritaten Included o
Pricing Summary Abatf pi Poxiye Inciuged e
New Hire Filing £V Included L]
Oft-Lycte Payrun Fee Included ]
O Do oy Includea o
— Ontive Chech St Included ]
[ . @ . Ontoe Reporting Inghuded []
“ ” W ” Payoir Anatytacs Put Inel o
nmb it Payeos R tnenuged °
L : = — Payptor Putie Incloded []
Payrof and Tas Sercce Included L}
Ong Time Fees Annual irst Yoar Arpoctiog Opsem Incloded P
Sewp Foos SE6 507 00 Serveo Foos 53620500 One Veme Fees £6 50000 360 4Dk Integration Each 4% 000 000
Clogs Purzhase pratei] Year Eng Foes S1E20 00 Annua'ved Feoa sSige oo S8 EIN Frocetuiin Each A #9500 ”.” -
= e GL Momihdy Per Actve Employes 450 000 -]
Not One Time Fees £6,500.00 Not A d 538.028.00 Net Tetal $44,548.00 GL Per Run Per Active Employes a5n $0.00 0.00
Job Costing Electronic GL. Per Active Employeo 450 o 0o
OnDemand Pay Per Active Employee L} oo 000
Paycor Recrudting Pro Per Acuve Employeo 450 3100 45000
PP o Paycor Time Each 0 5100 $300 00
Pricing Detail The Wers Number Per Active Employee 1 5000 .00
Time O Manager Per Active Employes 450 200 5a.00
Weorker Opportunity Tax Crodit Per Actve Employee 1 $0.00 000
Payrolls Employees Processings per Year Subtotal: E
County of Walker 1 450 2%
County of Walker 450 26
: co |
County of Walker
Estimated Year End Feed (Actual value bated on quantity of W2's processed. Amount vanes by yearly number of
employees|
County of Walker Sarvice Unit oy 5 Cost Pae S Total
Per Payroll Processing Fees ACA YE 1094 Fee Each 1 e $0.00
ACA YE 1095 Fee Each 459 0o o0
Service Uit Gy § Cost Per § Total W2 Baze Fee Each 1 54000 54200
Pro Wage Gamishment Each 1 52,00 5800 Wi Frocheniig Eachy A58 1400 L
s TN
s [ NEEEN
Implementation Fees Gty § Cost Per $ Total
S0THED! Setup Fee 1 so0d bR
County of Walker ACA Setup Fee 450 -] 5000
New Hire Filing Fees (Incurred per new employoe) Elestrenic GL Sotup Fee 1 1800 $3.00
Onboarding Setup Foe 453 F-E- ] 3w
Service Unit Qy $ Cost Per $ Total Paycot HR Setup Fee 450 S444 f1toa00
Paycor Recruiting Pro Setup Fee 450 $LIt $500.00
E-Verity Service Per Active Employes 1 $0.00 50.00 Paycoe Time Setup Fee ey s122 $1.000.00
| oy e o




Contract Terms

= 6 months 50% off HCM Cor Promotion for
June = $6,750 first year savings

= Total first year costs = $37,798 T
= Total second year costs = $38,048 H@ ©®-
= 2-year price lock _ =
. | OnsTimeFees QN  AncuskredFess i  FintYVescinvestment |
= 5% cap on future mecereases SHERTES AR AT Deleaion
= Implementation fees due AFTER first payroll e One TirsFoes TAB0000 ot Annumioed ey NeiTowl
process

= Split in 6 equal payments over a 6-
month period



Current State
indeed SN

Linked] —————= & ﬁ mlﬂﬂa

-
— —
ZipRecruiter — e Candidate Application Candidate
Career Sites that link on website Offer Letter =
to application nhl. lH
Onboarding, I-9, W-4
N ” EVerify
. L n..
AR s . EQ

Payroll, ERP, Accounting z

Time Tracking
BENEFITS GROUP |
Benefit mzazami
10955 & 1095 C

\.\
\ 401k, ACCG website

>

Status Changes
(position & pay)

Updated Policies



Future StatE%esls

A Paychex® Company

401k, ACCG website

BENEFITS CROUP |

One single application that streamlines communication across all systems, helping empower your employees and leaders
while providing you with the data you need to drive better business outcomes



Recruiting

How Paycor can help:

v" Paycor mEoBmzom_E%Oma out to job boards on
our behalf - Indeed, Glassdoor, ZipRecruiter &
inkedIn and candidates come right back into

Paycor

v' Paycor has iframe for candidates to apply from
your website

v" Knockout questions and automated candidate
scoring

v' Sometimes get 40+ applicants on a job Auto
.:wo_c:m of length of time to hire and creation of
charts

Text candidates directly through Paycor

Activity timeline to track all conversations,
texts, attachments with candidates on one
screen Offer letter management

v' Electronic offer letters

AN

Kerry Smuth (SS9 P

Cotre Swt

i=

L

{=

Drafe  Bawiresnls

Production & Plannmng Cootematos

e e T

Comparty Pages @

Free Job Boards @

Premwm Job Boards @

Jots Feed




Onboarding

How Paycor can help:

€

Paycor verifies bank account with no need to pre-
note

No more paper! 100% electronic onboarding that
automatically updates their employee profile and
payroll

Reduce orientation time

Paycor manages the I-9 and W-4 compliance

Integration with E-Verify — removing manual data
entry, Paycor hooks up directly through your
account

Automatically notify state of new hires b=

Tax Credit Screening

Bah ta Contact




T ekl Compeion Bepert CEENCT ST il WL T - §

Employee Profile o e e,

Trae va s
et e

seTsTMENTS
aten e ik .
[T —— [T e

TOTAL COMPENSATION $6,026.20

How Paycor Can Help:

v" Automatically send updated documents and policies to all
employees to sign with a click of a button

Automated approval process for pay and position changes
v" Electronic tracking of accidents & workers compensation
v' Ability to electronically track discipline and coaching of

TAALE & TN TS

Ko e e 4%

<

employees um_u = = =
v Scheduled - 5 : BE  ES
v Total Compensation report automatically created for each = M“ - =

cmployes B
v" Survey tool to use for team member questionnaires i e = — -

v HR Support Center On Demand for HR compliance help

= CETER




Time & Attendance

How Paycor can help:

v" Can add supplemental pay to employees that ties
back to GL and grants

v Employee working 2 different jobs can have multiple
rates of pay & Paycor will allocate time correctly to
correct rate of pay

v" No more paper and excel timesheets. Time
automatically flows to payroll

v" Departments that don’t follow traditional 8-hour
days — Paycor can handle fire dept (48-hour shifts)
and police dept unique rules

v" Employees can clock from android or iPad tablet,
through mobile with geo-tracking, or from IP
address locked computer or enter time into
electronic time sheet

v’ Ability to restrict punch types by groups of
employees

Taucor e Loffec

Fatia! Recognition

iPad Kiosk App

Peg Dt

78313

ann

Wierk Locater




Time Off

How Paycor can help:

v" Ability to ensure PTO does not count towards
overtime for salaried employees

v' Electronically approve and deny PTO
requests

v" Automated accrual tracking

v" Automated payouts of PTO upon termination

of employee

v" Hardship buyouts can be done in payroll or
added to the timecard (ability to ensure a
second check does not take out taxes)

i s Gt Paid Leave

v .\ v

Automatic Payout
g Contute autamatic payments for accrues berat 2
The Tame Off Type rrant fave an carreng code wet for I Payout, belore you can confiquie the Payout

Payout Date
*Date

v&dc._r:,ucu.
. -

1mﬁ£ Upon Termination
i o] t ermpioyer s Dalande when lermendied

AR earnung coce set 1or the Payout, betore you can configure the Payout

‘©




Payroll

Estmated Liabity and Vanance Expicre Vanance 3 Empioyess Check Suemary
What you need to know: rf . 8 trnmecin nces

v Live payroll w gty
v" Free off cycle payrolls s ot
v" Update employee profiles while in payroll and payroll 1 Crusti i Py Yk 011774

automatically updates -
v Supplemental pay automation RO
v" Add earnings and deduction codes at any time sences
v Additional checks automatically remove taxing e
v Full garnishments service — just upload and notify employee &

we take care of the rest! Automatic calculation of retro pay — T RCO0S
v" Automated arrears tracking “set and forget” el P e e
v’ Effective data pay changes with automated pro-rating 3 : ..

v Customized GL export to import into Tyler Technologies (Tyler _
New World — Paycor has been mapping since 2020) _ 30 .

v" Self print checks option or Paycor prints and ships to you : am B emn

Employees Due Retroactive Pay

o
+




et DasooaTy

Reports & Analytics

Sharts ard Surs - & look ar Turmdaeer

Report Tools - Labor Hours Detail with Estimated Cost (OP)

How Paycor can help: , , | I i

..H - ~ .. " H.r\: — Select Data Columm e

Canned reports that you can adjust
Custom report builder o
Favorite Reports . i i
Pull reports into various formats
Search across all data points & reports iy
Dashboards
Filter, group & sort data on all canned and custom

reports = Paytor
Analytics — drill down into data

Share reports that maintain security access across

R T L LR

Create a New Report

& %

- Croone & §130 T Hegart 16 (LTIOmay 4 rewded
,_.HmmH.w L Standard Reports
L -
-
-
= Beretts Reports - Caliiar G
HE Reporn, = Orboardre Fep
Lot Rep 1 A e B 14

Operational Reports




Risk Management

v Employee Adoption
v" Administrative Trainings
v" Employee & Manager training videos
v" Knowledge Center with instructional videos and SOPs
v" Project Completion
v" Dedicated Project Manager
v" Dedicated Implementation Consultant Specialists
v" Project Plan with timelines provided and updated
weekly
v" $0 paid prior to first payroll in Paycor
v’ Data Accuracy
v Paycor has a thorough quality assurance process to
ensure your data is accurate in Paycor
v" Multiple calls reviewing and verifying data
v" 2 different data extraction points to ensure most up to
date information



What Our Clients Say...

What my clients say: Brands that trust Paycor:

COBB COUNTY-MARIETTA Y

: Fikie o ([ WATER AUTHORITY | I
up .;.,.c&.{_c.cn-. T T ENEGTe e ﬁ

ll-ﬂm..l.h‘ll\ll. We're from here.

the 217 Century. And with Carly’s helo | believe we are anour way. She has been an invaluable resource
1o our team trom the inmial sales calis through the implementation, to sur transition 1o supporn

operations. | am hepeful that acding the payroll module is our next move, and | am canfident that Carl —u
e el First Presbyterian

i5 the nght persan to came n and tell that 1o our very hesitant Executive Team.
Church ¢

W technalopy Can revolution e our ¢

D Eanhinued parinerstng with Carly,

@OI_N_m._._bZ CITY

What truly sets Carly apart is her unwaverng ded:cation to her chients. She cons:stently exceeded our m_o (.Nn
above and beyond to ensure our needs were not only met but surpassed, Carly's ICHA _/0___ _(M.mm
m 10 detal, ang wilimgriess 1o go theextra mlehave Been crocial in o e _U T

. i | .
ary, Pupols is an outstanding Ec_a sional t_.oC..._.._u_.ﬁ.vs highest standards of clent >———m:nm “ —U—:m

g deditalion 10 our sucLess
| service and suppott

WHE ngetheory’

L ONE 2.8

IPS is not only .mu_un.:n Payroll and HCM, but all related systems, including recruiting, onboarding,
scheduling, timek g training, and knowledg B . The most critical and highest risk
._._..u_n.._..n:_m:o: for 1PS is Payroll and HCM. On top of being higher risk, there was a need to implement
| E:__S__ in 3 weeks to hit the quarter start date for tax purposes, otherwise, IPS would need to wait 3

more months until the next quarter.

| Qur sales representatives, Carly Pujols and John Coyle have been excellent in communication and

| .3:“33:2 with our team from ::. initial sales calls through implementation. They engaged the

_ p ion team i 4 y to meet our timeline and helped us through any product related
questions throughout the process. They made sure we had all the people and information resources
needed.

| Throughout my career, | have done many system implementations, and this was the best

| communication and effort | have experienced. We really appreciate all you do.

RICHMOND HILL

AL this pomnt we anly have your HRIS system. but my goal is to bring this “1850's” company into Qmﬁuho ___\&

MUNICIPAL
ASSOCIATION

DAY SCHOOL

&: _ NZ YANMAR 4
PLATTE COUNTY mwx N ’_‘

ENVIRONHENTAL



Implementation & Change Management

U@b&;@% Mﬁ@oﬁﬂ__@&m _?«ﬂ%@%&ﬁ%.ﬂ%?

Fun ¢tiora .____ m_ﬂ?_m

*IC = Implementation Consultant




Implementati June
O—\- nm —Q:Qm ﬂ System Go-Live

Sunday

15

22

29

5

Board Meeting

9 10 11 12
Legal approval process
16 17 18 19

Paycor submits Implementation
paperwork Team Assigned

23 24 o5 Mm

Gain Access to

Getting Started - m%wmmow "
Portal ploy

30

Paycor reviews

files

Monday E Wednesday | Thursday
3 4

ﬁm<¥00-.

Empowiring Lvader,

Saturday
6 Z
13 14
Partnership
Finalized
20 21
Kick Off
Meeting
27 28

Provide Paycor
Employee Data



Implementati
on Calendar

ﬁmmmo_.,

Emprowlonng Lautor

July

Payroll Go-Live

1 2 3 4

13

20

27

14

21

28

5

i Define system configuration and security/access
Paycor building out system y g Ty

8 9 10 11 12
Paycor reviewing system configuration with Walker County System Admin Training
15 16 17 18 19
Pay Period Start

Manager & Employee Trainings Employees begin clocking in Paycor

for bi-weekly

22 23 24 25 26
Complete comparison payroll run, load YTD wage and tax data

29 30 31
Pay Period Review and prep
End payroll



Implementati
on Calendar

Sunday Monday

10

17

24

11

18

25

_umwwmwoﬂ.

August

Payroll Go-Live

Tuesday Wednesday
S 6
18t Check Date
in Paycor
12 13
19 20
2nd Check Date
in Paycor
26 27

Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2
Submit payroll
by 3pm PST
7 8 9
14 15 16
Review and prep Submit payroll
payroll by 3pm PST
21 22 23
28 29



Paycor Client Support

ﬁ&ﬁ?&ﬁ?w ﬁamo::\@

Customer Success Manager

How | Support Pavcor Clients:

Align priorities and challenges with Paycor vision
Plan utiization of Paycor, proactively identifying/mibgating risk
Align resources

Quarterly updates on our preduct and CX Roadmap

Porytor

A
Hello, how can we nafy ¢

Set-Help Submit A Case Suppor: Team

Omni-channel Support

Lrva Chat

R



RESOLUTION R-045-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY
AUTHORIZING A ONE-TIME CONTRIBUTION TO THE THE PENSION PLAN FOR
EMPLOYEES OF WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA TO INCREASE FUNDING
PERCENTAGE FOLLOWING PLAN UNFREEZE

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the Pension Plan for Employees of Walker County, also called the Pension
Plan for Employees of the Walker County Commissioner, was first established effective
January 1, 1973, by the Sole Commissioner of Walker County, for the benefit of eligible
employees and as amended and restated effective January 1, 2013 (the "Plan"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 7.01 of the Plan, the Board amended the Plan, in part,
by approving the FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE PENSION PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF
WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA on May 1, 2025 to unfreeze the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to make a one-time contribution to the Plan to improve
its overall funding percentage in the Plan and to demonstrate the County’s ongoing
commitment to responsible pension funding practices;

WHEREAS, the Board now desires to approve and authorize a contribution to the
Plan; and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board does hereby authorize and direct
the Chairwoman of the Board or her designee to take all necessary actions to effectuate the
contribution and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, and plan
requirements to make a one-time payment of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) to be
contributed to the Plan. The contribution shall be used solely for the purpose of improving the
funded status of the Plan and shall be deposited in accordance with the Plan’s funding and
investment policies.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this fifth day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
from Commissioner

, second by Commissioner
(SEAL) , and upon the question
the vote is ayes, nays to

the Resolution.




Pension Plan for the Employees of the
Walker County Commissioner

January 1, 2025 Actuarial Valuation Results

April 18, 2025

Gallagher

Insurance _ Risk Management _ Consulting

@ 2025 Arthur J, Gallagher & Co.,




& Gallagher
Agenda

January 1, 2025 Valuation Results

Contribution Method Alternatives

Risk Considerations

* Appendix

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. || *




&  Gallagher

January 1, 2025 Valuation Results

@© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.



. & Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Actuarial Valuation Process

* Snapshot measurement of the actuarial position of the pension plan at a given point in time, based on a set
of actuarial methods and assumptions

* Measures benefit obligation (liabilities) and compares it to financial resources (assets)

* Ensures compliance with Georgia Minimum Funding Standards

* Determines annual contribution sufficiency and provides warnings of potential funding problems
* Does not reflect the impact of future participants or future plan provision changes

» Detects changes and trends through annual experience and gain/loss analysis

Over the life of the plan

.

- —
Investment II
Return

©2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | -




. &  Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Actuarial Valuation Process

Assumptions / Methods

Demographic / Economic Assumptions
Funding Method / Asset Valuation Method

Census Data
As of January 1, 2025

Actuarial Valuation

Plan Provisions

Assets

As of January 1, 2025 Unfreeze of uﬂwﬁﬂwm_mmmommm_:@m effective

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | =




. x> Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Executive Summary

Proposed assumption change to update the .
mortality assumption to the most recent Funded percentage decreased from prior
finalized Public Sector morality study (Pub- year: 90.0% to 62.6%

2010 Amount Weighted General Retiree

Below-Median table) Decreases to 62.2% with the proposed mortality

assumption change
Adopling the proposed mortality assumption 5 =

change results in an increase in unfunded
liability of $85,000

Plan Changes Actuarially determined contribution

Reflects plan change of unfreezing ERDCe fincleascs Honlba U S o
$890,050

pensionable earnings as of January 1, 2025

Results in an increase in unfunded liability of Increases to $904, 233 with the proposed mortality
$4.9:million assumption change

© 2025 Arthur J, Gallagher & Co, |




. &  Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Details of Plan Change

« Reflected in the valuation results is the plan change as outlined in the fifth amendment
+ This change will unfreeze the pensionable earnings as of January 1, 2025

« Compensation earned after December 31, 2012 will no longer be frozen and will be included for purposes of determining
Average Compensation for all benefit payments made on or after January 1, 2025

 This change will affect the following members:
*  Active members of the Plan

¢ Vested terminated (“VT") members who have yet to begin receiving payments, as well as retired, disabled and beneficiaries
of the Plan who had earnings after December 31, 2012 which if incorporated into the benefit formula would result in a higher
benefit.

< For members already receiving an annuity that will increase due to the unfreezing of pensionable earnings, the updated annuity payments will take
effect on January 1, 2025, with no retroactive adjustments for payments made before that date

« This change will not impact members who have received a lump sum payout prior to January 1, 2025

©2025 Arthur J. Gallagher &Co. |




. &  Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Historical Headcount

140
120 116
100
80
60
40

20

1/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025
m Active = Vested Terminations m Retirees, Beneficiaries and Disabled

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | €



o =

x ~» Gallagher

Summary of Valuation Results
Historical Funded Percentage

$14.0 100%
90.0%
86.4%
$12.0 "
80.5%
80%
$10.0 68.8%
62.2% M_
60%
- $8.0 () W
S o
: 7
= $6.0 40% 3
]
=
Q
$4.0 nw
20%
$2.0
$0.0 0%
1/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 1/1/2025
Before Mortality After Mortality
Change Change

= Market Value of Assets = Actuarial Accrued Liability —O—Funded Percentage

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. |



. x> Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Historical Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

$1,000
$900 $890 $904
$800
$700
$600

$500

$423

$400

$ Thousands

$300
$200

$100

$0
1/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 1/1/2025

. Before Mortality After Mortality
Numbers may not add due to rounding Change Change :

® Normal Cost = Amortization Payment = Interest

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co, |



Contribution Method Alternatives

= The contribution impact was determined based on the following alternatives:

—  Current Method: This assumes that no changes to the funding method would occur. Therefore, all unfunded liability would be scheduled to be funded over the
next 8 years.

—  Alternative Method #1: Under this method, a new 15-year amortization base would be created to pay for the increase in liabilities due to the plan change. The
original unfunded liability would continue to be paid over the next 8 years.

— Alternative Method #2: Under this method, all unfunded liability would be paid over the next 15 years (instead of the current 8-year method)
«  These three methods all meet the funding requirements under Georgia state law.

- Generally, industry best practice is to amortize active plan amendments over the average expected remaining future service (which
is 6 years). Due to the specifics of this plan and this change, we believe it would be acceptable to amortize over a longer period of
time. However, given the closed nature of the population we would recommend not amortizing over any period in excess of 15 years.

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | 11



(e%® Gallagher

Contribution Method
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

$1,200 Current Method Alternative Method #1 Alternative Method #2
$1,000
$890 $904
$800
w $600
o
=
1]
wn
3
= $400
$200
$0
Before mortality After mortality Before mortality After mortality Before mortality After mortality
update update update update update update
mNormal Cost ®Amortization Payment ®interest
© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | 12



The contribution amount and years needed to amortize the unfunded liability was determined based on the following requested
alternatives:

—  Current Amortization Method: This assumes no changes to the funding method would occur. Therefore, all unfunded liability would be scheduled to be funded
over the next 8 years and would result in an annual actuarially determined contribution of approximately $890,000 (and $904,000 after mortality update).

—  Current Annual Contribution: This assumes the current level of contributions are made by the County in the amount of $840,000/annum. Under this scenario
all unfunded liability would be scheduled to be funded over 8.71 years (8.91 years after mortality update).

— ADC + $4.9M on Jan. 1, 2025: This assumes the actuarially determined contributions are made by the County plus an additional amount of $4.9M on January
1, 2025 (this is the increase in the unfunded liability due to lifting the compensation freeze). Under this scenario the plan is fully funded before updating the
mortality and approximately $6,500 underfunded afterwards.

= Note the impact on the interest paid under this scenario compared to not paying the additional $4.9M upfront and continuing to pay $840k per year is approximately $980K over 8.71 years (and
$1.01M over 8.91 years after mortality update).

—  Current Annual Contribution + $1.0M on Jan. 1, 2025: This assumes the current level of contributions are made by the County in the amount of
$840,000/annum plus an additional amount of $1.0M on January 1, 2025. Under this scenario all unfunded liability would be scheduled to be funded over 6.6
years (6.8 years after mortality update).

All of these contribution methods meet the funding requirements under Georgia state law.

A summary of the contributions and amortization periods for the scenarios above is provided in the chart on the following two slides.

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | 13



Contribution Method — Alternative Scenarios

(¥® Gallagher

Impact on amortization years under alternative payment scenarios —
before mortality change

$6.0

Millions
i
o
=

$4.0

$3.0

$2.0

$1.0

$0.0

m.o """ ,I
||||| \
8.7 \
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
Current Amortization Method Current Annual Contribution

mmmm Additional Contribution Jan 1

$4.6M at 11

mmmm Annual Contribution

$1M at 1/1

= = Amortization Years

Current Annual Contribution,

10

o
Years

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | 14



(e Gallagher

Contribution Method — Alternative Scenarios

Impact on amortization years under alternative payment scenarios —
after mortality change

$6.0

Millions
+H

o

o

$4.0

$3.0

$2.0

$1.0

$0.0

-
= - -—
-_— -_
- -—
e -—

Years

Current Annual Contribution,
$1M at 1/1

Current Amortization Method Current Annual Contribution

$4.6M at 1/1

mmmm Additional Contribution Jan 1 mmmm A nnual Contribution - == Amortization Years

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. | 15



. & Gallagher
Summary of Valuation Results

Actuarial Rate of Return

8%

7%

- 6.85% 6.75%
> Lo

4% 4.50%

3%

2%

1%

0%
1% -0.39%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
——Expected Rate of Return  ——Actuarial Rate of Return

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. |



&  Gallagher

Risk Considerations

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.




: . . . . &~ Gallagher
Potential risks to fund’s future financial condition

» Deviations between actual future experience and actuarial assumed future experience may cause the fund
to become less funded over time increasing the required contributions.

- Afew areas where deviations may arise:

Investment risk: Long term return on Salary increase risk: Demographic risk:

investment risk:

* Fund experience regarding
longevity, retirement,
termination, disability and
other demographics different
than assumed

* The risk that actual salary
increase will be higher
than expected

* Fund does not achieve
the 5.00% expected » Potential that changes in
return on assets over long term capital market
time assumptions or plan's
asset allocation will
create the need to update
the long-term return on
investment assumption

If retirements occur at the
same time and opt for
lumps sums, assets may
need to be liquidated at a
higher cost than expected
& EROA will be harder to
achieve

Lump sum risk:

Contribution risk:

» The risk that members
opting for lump sum » Actual contribution amounts
payment will be different less than the actuarially
than expected determined contribution

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. |




& Gallagher

Appendix

©2025 Athur J, Gallagher & €o. 19




& Gallagher

Georgia House Bill 196

+ Georgia House Bill 196 is a law that amended Title 47 of the Georgia Code.

* Law requires the trustees of pension plans within the state to complete education applicable to their duties
and obligations under the public retirement system.

+ For each trustee first appointed or elected on or after July 1, 2019, a minimum of 8 hours of education
designed to orient new trustees is required in the first year of becoming a new trustee.

- For each trustee first appointed or elected before July 1, 2019 or who has served one or more years, a
minimum of 12 hours of continuing education every two years is required.

» Each public retirement system must maintain a record of its public retirement system trustee education.

© 2025 Arthur Ji Gallagher & Co. |




Gallagher

Georgia House Bill 196 (continued)

 Applicable education includes education and training in the following areas:
— Laws applicable to public retirement systems
— Roles, duties and responsibilities of public retirement system trustees
— Ethics and conflicts of interest
— Governance, administration and funding of public retirement systems
— Investments

— Audit and actuarial principles / methods

> Applicable education may include:
— Seminars, conferences, or schools sponsored by educational institutions or professional organizations

— Online continuing education coursework

— Continuing education received at any public retirement system meeting

— Any other continuing education approved by the public retirement system

©'2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. |



; - x  Gallagher
Schedule of Active Participant Data

5t09 10 to 14 15to 19 20 to 24 2510 29 30to 34 3510 39 40 & up

Attained Age No. No. No. No. No. No. No. No. No. No.
30 to 39 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
40 to 44 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3
45 to 49 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 4
50 to 54 0 0 0 0 8 1 3 0 0 12
55 to 59 0 0 0 0 2 2 4 1 0 9
60 to 64 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3
65 to 69 0 0 0 0 3 1 1 1 0 6
70 & up 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total 0 0 1 0 21 7

Shaded counts represent those who are currently retirement eligible

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. |




Tt D x ~ Gallagher
Status Reconciliation of Participant Data

Terminated
Vested

Actives Retirees Beneficiaries

Participants as of January 1, 2024 40 22 1 29 92

Changes due to:

Termination
Vested 0 0 0 0 0
Nonvested 0 0 0 0 0
Lump sum distribution 0 0 0 (1) (1)
Retirements (1) 1 0 0 0
Deaths
With survivor 0 0 0 0 0
Without survivor 0 0 0 0 0
New entrants 0 0 0
Total changes (1) 1 0
Participants as of December 31, 2024 39 23 1

© 2025 Arthtir J. Gallagher & Co. |




. Gallagher
Disclosures

The valuation results in this presentation were developed for the Pension Board of the Pension Plan for the Employees of the Walker County
Commissioner by Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. (hereinafter “Gallagher”) using generally accepted actuarial principles and techniques in
accordance with all applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOPs). The purpose of this presentation is to provide to the board a
summary of the January 1, 2025 valuation results for discussion during the board meeting attended by the actuaries.

This presentation is part of the January 1, 2025 actuarial valuation services provided by Gallagher, and a full actuarial valuation report will be
provided. The actuarial valuation report includes information related to potential risks associated with the plan and information regarding our
use of models.

No third-party recipient should rely upon Gallagher’s work product absent involvement of Gallagher or without our prior approval.

The funded ratio presented is appropriate for evaluating the need and level of future contributions but makes no assessment regarding the
funded status of the plan if the plan were to settle (i.e., purchase annuities) for a portion or all of its liabilities.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurement presented in this presentation due to such factors as:
plan experience different from that anticipated by the economic and demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of
the natural operation of the methodology used for these measurements; and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. Due to the limited
scope of this report, an analysis of the potential range of such future measurements has not been performed.

Kevin Spanier is an Associate of the Society of Actuaries, a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries, an Enrolled Actuary and a Fellow
of the Conference of Consulting Actuaries. Lisa Bjornson is a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries, an Enrolled Actuary and a
Fellow of the Conference of Consulting Actuaries. They met the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render .Hjm
moEm:m_o_o_:_oswoo:ﬁm_:ma_:E_wuﬁmwm:ﬁm:oz ___




© Copyright 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. and subsidiaries. All rights reserved: No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval
system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, whether electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without the prior written
permission of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.

Consulling and insurance brokerage services to be provided by Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. and/or its affiliate Gallagher Bengefit Services
(Canada) Group Inc. Gallagher Benefil Services, Inc. is a licensed insurance agency that does business in California as “Gallagher Benefit Services
ofi California Insurance Senvices™ and in Massachusetis as "Gallagher Benefit Insurance Services.® Neither Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., non its affiliates
provide accounting, legal or tax advice.

Gallagher

Insurance 7 Risk Management _ Consulting

© 2025 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.




RESOLUTION R-046-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE WALKER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO
INCREASE THE BUDGETED AMOUNT FOR ACCG/IRMA RISK INSURANCE

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
authority of Walker County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, Due to rising insurance premiums, Walker County has experienced
increased expenses, necessitating a budget amendment; and

WHEREAS, the current budgeted allocation for risk management insurance premiums
is insufficient to cover the increased costs; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the budget to reflect the increased insurance
expense; and

WHEREAS, 0.C.G.A. § 36-81-63(d)(1) requires any increase in appropriation at the
legal level of control of a local government shall require the approval of the governing authority
by ordinance or resolution;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia hereby amends the fourth quarter FY 2025 General Funds budget by increasing line
item 100.1555.5231000.00 by $38,163.00. This increase is allocated for the purpose of
funding higher premiums for risk management insurance coverage.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman/CEQ

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for

from Commissioner ,
second by Commissioner )
(SEAL) and upon the question the vote is ayes,
nays to adopt the Resolution.




Underwriting & Member Services Billing Contacts:
Email: accainsurance@accq.org

= il Members starting with | Members starting with
Instlanee Prooians A-J L-W
Carey-Lynn Mcllvaine Glenda Williams
p. 404.614.2551 p. 678.225.4253

ACCG-Interlocal Risk Management Agency
Billing Notice

Dear ACCG-IRMA Member:

Thank you for your continued participation in the ACCG-IRMA program. The ACCG-
IRMA is non-profit and member-owned. Prompt payment of your contribution is
necessary to keep the cost of coverage down for all members. Please note these
important billing guidelines and payment instructions:

e Payment is due in full by July 15t

o Alate finance charge of 7% annual, daily pro-rated interest will be assessed on
all contributions over 30 days past due.

Please contact the Underwriting & Member Services team with any questions.

How to Pay ACCG-IRMA:

PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO THE ACCG-IRMA.
MAIL PAYMENT AND ONE COPY OF INVOICE IN AN ENVELOPE TO:

Regular Payment Address:

Truist Trust Dept — Income Processing 1
ACCG-IRMA # 0375

P.O. Box 896741

Charlotte, NC 28289-6741

PLEASE RETURN ONE COPY OF INVOICE WITH YOUR REMITTANCE

Overnight/Physical Payment Address:
Truist

Attn: Lockbox# 896741
5130 Parkway Plaza Blvd
Charlotte, NC 28217-1964




;

Insurance Programs

INTERLOCAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY

PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO THE ACCG-IRMA.
MAIL PAYMENT AND ONE COPY OF INVOICE IN AN ENVELOPE TO:

Truist Trust Dept — Income Processing 1
ACCG-IRMA # 0375

P.O. Box 896741

Charlotte, NC 28289-6741

Walker County

101 S Duke St
PO Box 445

LaFayette, GA 30728

MEMBER: NO.: 6350

INVOICE

INVOICE NO.: 25-07-6350IRMA

DUE DATE: 7/1/2025

INSURANCE DESCRIPTION
PROPERTY & LIABILITY

DEPARTMENT
ACCG INSURANCE PROGRAMS

SAME AS EXPIRING DEDUCTIBLES: $5,000 AL/APD; $5,000 Crime; $5,000 GL;
$15,000 LEL; $5,000 PROP; $15,000 POL; $25,000 Cyber

COVERAGE PERIOD
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DUE
EFFECTIVE EXPIRATION
7/1/2025 7/1/2026 ACCG-IRMA Renewal Contribution
Limit of $1,000,000 $762,648
Liability:
With $1,000,000 on Auto Liability
CONTRIBUTIONS ARE DUE IN FULL BY DUE DATE 7/1/2025.

$762,648

PLEASE RETURN ONE COPY WITH YOUR REMITTANCE

The ACCG-IRMA is non-profit and member-owned. Prompt payment of your contribution is necessary to keep the cost of
coverage down for all members. A finance charge of 7% annual, pro-rated daily interest will be assessed on any contributions over
30 days past due. Should you have any questions about this invoice, please email accginsurance@accg.org.

WE APPRECIATE YOUR PARTICIPATION IN
THE ACCG ~ INTERLOCAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY.

Printed: May 21, 2025




Insurance Programs

May 30, 2025

Ms. Lisa Richardson
Walker County

101 S Duke St

La Fayette, GA 30728

Attention: Ms. Lisa Richardson
Subject: ACCG-IRMA Contribution Breakdown

This document serves to provide assistance in breaking down the IRMA contribution by department for
cost allocation purposes. There are numerous acceptable ways of effectively allocating the contribution
to the various departments within your county. We have developed one method that will allow you to
customize your contribution breakdown according to your county's specific needs. We have attempted
to simplify the allocation process due to the many factors that go into the renewal pricing, so that you can
easily allocate the contributions as you see fit.

We have provided a standard exposure basis for each of the coverage areas below as well as the
exposures you recently provided to us for the renewal. Also provided is the percentage of contribution
for each category as it relates to your total contribution. Based on this percentage and the exposures
within that category, we have developed an estimated allocated cost per unit for the deductible purchased
in the previous coverage period. (If the county chooses a different deductible for the renewal coverage
period, you can pro-rate these costs accordingly). To calculate a specific department's share of the
contribution for a particular category, multiply their portion of the total exposure by the allocated cost per
unit.

Coverage Exposure Basis Total Exposures | Cost Per Unit % of
Contribution
General Liability, Law Payroll
Enforcement Liability, (Per $100) =
Public Officials Liability, $21,031,783 $0.97 27%
Crime and Cyber
Automobile Liability # of Vehicles 350 $869 40%
Auto Physical Damage # of Vehicles 140 $731 13%
:ﬁl':é)tﬁ:g,ryaoner & Total IFsgrraggo;/alues $107,134,242 $0.14 20%
Total Contribution $762,648
Excess Liability (if applicable) $0
Safety Credit (if applicable) -$0




Page 2
May 30, 2025

As an example for the first coverage cateqory, if the Road Department has payroll of $1,000,000
and an allocated cost per unit for Liability is $2.2, you would calculate their portion of the
contribution as follows:

$1,000,000/$100 Per Payroll x $2.2 = $22,000

On the Auto Liability and Physical Damage, for example, if the Road Department has 10 vehicles and
an allocated cost per unit is $360, calculate their portion of the contribution as follows:

10 Vehicles x $360 = $3,600

For the Property and Boiler & Machinery coverage, if the Road Department has $2,000,000 in total
insurable values according to the ACCG-IRMA Statement of Values form and an allocated cost per unit
of $.094, calculate their portion of the contribution as follows:

$2,000,000/$100 Per TIV x .094 = $1,880

As for the Excess Liability that your county may have purchased, since the coverage applies excess
over your General Liability, Public Officials Liability, Law Enforcement Liability and Auto Liability
coverages, you could allocate the same proportion of the Excess Liability to each of the departments.
For instance, if the Road Department is responsible for 20% of the General Liability, Public Officials
Liability, Law Enforcement Liability and Auto Liability contributions according to the above cost
allocation process, they would pay 20% of the Excess Liability contributions. The same principal could
apply to the Safety Credit, if received for this Coverage Period, and you would like it credited to each of
the departments.

Of course, if you have any questions about how to work with this suggested format or if you have any
other questions about the allocation of costs, please give me a call. As always, we appreciate your
membership in the ACCG-IRMA and look forward to working with you in the coming year.

Sincerely,
Matt Autry, ARM-E, CIC, CSRM

Underwriting and Member Services Manager
ACCG-IRMA Administrator

ACCG-IRMA Contributions by Coverage
General Liability $42,806
Law Enforcement Liability $97,315
Public Officials Liability $53,704
Automobile Liability $304,275
Automobile Physical Damage $102,343
Property $140,503
Boiler & Machinery $12,196
Crime $4,156
Privacy or Security Liability & Expense (Cyber) $5,350
Total Primary Contribution $762,648
Excess Liability Contribution $0
Less Safety Credit (if applicable) -$0
Net Contribution Due $762,648




RESOLUTION R-047-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
AUTHORIZE THE CHAIR TO COMPLETE THE HINKLE FIRE STATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County (“Board”) is the governing
body of the county and is charged with managing the fiscal affairs of the county; and

WHEREAS, voters authorized the expenditure of $250,000 in the 2013 Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for the purpose of constructing a “multipurpose emergency
facility for the Hinkle community;” and

WHEREAS, voters authorized the expenditure of an additional $300,000 in the 2020
Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for the purpose of “facility completion of the Hinkle
fire station on Lookout Mountain;” and

WHEREAS, there has been discussion in the community about whether to finish the
building as a fire station, community center, combination fire station and community center,
or abandon the project; and

WHEREAS, the Board has already invested over $1.1-million into completing this
project;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County
that the Chair, or her designee, is authorized to take whatever steps she deems necessary to
complete this project as a fire station, as specified in Resolution R-005-20 Exhibit A.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June, 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairman

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
from Commissioner

second by Commissioner ,

and upon the question the vote is ayes,

nays to the Resolution.

(SEAL)




RESOLUTION R-048-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WALKER COUNTY TO
ESTABLISH A REGULAR MEETING LOCATION

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Walker County is the governing authority
of Walker County, Georgia, as set forth by Act No. 165 (“Act”) passed by the Georgia General
Assembly during the 2017-2018 session and subsequently approved by the Governor; and

WHEREAS, Part I, Section 9 of the Act, as amended by Resolution R-045-24 / R-001-
25, states the Board of Commissioners shall hold a minimum of one regular meeting each
month at the county seat; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to move the location of its regular meetings;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Walker County,
Georgia that regular meetings will be held at 201 S Duke Street in LaFayette effective July 10th.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED regular meetings will continue to be held on the first
Thursday of each month at 6:00 p.m.; Should the regular meeting date conflict with a county
holiday, then the regular meeting will be held on the second Thursday of the month.

FURTHER RESOLVED the building located at 201 S Duke Street in LaFayette is
hereby designated as Walker County Courthouse Annex IV.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of June 2025.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

LISA RICHARDSON, County Clerk ANGELA TEEMS, Chairwoman

The foregoing Resolution received a motion for
from Commissioner
, second by Commissioner
, and upon the question
the vote is ayes, nays to

the Resolution.

(SEAL)




TRAIL DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
AND
GRANT OF TEMPORARY ACCESS AND CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BETWEEN
WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA AND THE TRUST FOR PUBLIC LAND

AMENDMENT NO. 1

THE TRAIL DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND GRANT OF TEMPORARY ACCESS AND
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT (“Agreement”) entered into on SEPTEMBER 12, 2024, between WALKER
COUNTY, GEORGIA (“COUNTY”) and THE TRUST FOR PUBLIC LAND (“CONSULTANT”) is hereby
amended.

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the Agreement needs to be revised to modify the Scope of Services to provide
for the replacement of a culvert at Osburn Road; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires to replace the culvert and has identified funding to be used for the
replacement of said culvert; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT desires to undertake the culvert replacement as part of its Scope of Services;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

l. In Exhibit “A” Scope of Services the Project Budget is amended to add the following:

TYPE COST
Walker County Culvert Replacement Budget
Culvert Construction Cost $152,310.00
TPL Project Administration (5%) $7,615.00
Total $159,925.00
2, In all other respects, the Agreement of which this is an Amendment, and attachments thereto, shall remain in

full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be duly executed the day and year last
written below.

THE TRUST FOR PUBLIC LAND WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA
By: Noel Durant By: Angie Teems
Title: Tennessee State Director Title: Chairwoman / CEO

Date: , 2025 Date:




WALKER COUNTY FIRE & RESCUE

wn
% 107 ALEX DRIVE
-

CHICKAMAUGA, GA 30707

o

VENDOR 60648 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES

O MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES

P O BOX 851792

1JVINO

QUANTITY | U/M
1.0000 |EA

MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55485-1792

W WALKER COUNTY FIRE & RESCUE PURCHASE ORDER
107 ALEX DRIVE NO. 2025-00001721
- CHICKAMAUGA, GA 30707
o DATE 05/20/2025
DELIVER BY
SHIP VIA
FREIGHT TERMS
ORIGINATOR Christina Carpenter
RESOLUTION #
PAYMENT TERMS
DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL COST
Capital - Other Equipment - 6-Scott SCBA's & 12-Scott Snap Change $53,346.4200 $53,346.42

Bottles

i

APPROVED BY

PAGE 1 OF 1

TOTAL DUE $53,346.42

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS




® WALKER COUNTY FIRE & RESCUE W WALKER COUNTY FIRE & RESCUE PURCHASE ORDER
= 107 ALEX DRIVE = 107 ALEX DRIVE NO. 2025-00001720
'_“l CHICKAMAUGA, GA 30707 : CHICKAMAUGA, GA 30707
o (o] DATE 05/20/2025
VENDOR 61379 NAFECO

DELIVER BY
O NAFECO SHIP VIA
© 1515 WEST MOULTON ST FREIGHT TERMS
— DECATUR, AL 35601 ORIGINATOR Christina Carpenter
> RESOLUTION #
a PAYMENT TERMS

QUANTITY [ U/M DESCRIPTION UNIT COST m
1.0000 |EA

Capital - Other Equipment - 13- Sets Lion V Force Armor Structural $43,147.0000 $43,147.00
Firefighting Gear
%/«;/ / TOTAL DUE $43,147.00
Lepns—

PAGE 1 OF 1

APPROVED BY

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS




Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

ﬁtezone [Jconditional Use Variance [ Variance

Current Zoning: Requested Change:
(O -1
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
0-079-0x% 75 .00

Applicant/Owner &Phone:_C‘i‘\:ﬁ} D:Q el CX D} lson 42349036503
Street Name & Number: [SC] Cl\#ifwwcgm Ualleq 2.

/
Mailing Address: ’ Diapme
City, State, Zip Code: __/—/ /70 7"§?‘UAJ€/ (4, ZoD25
Request: np e /‘a /2 ~/

John Morehose made a motion to

S - approve the rezone. Stan Porter
5 152085 KAPPROVED R seconded the motion to approve,

1 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS The vote was unanimous.
The motion to approve carried.

5 ThsLED lozesl o
m
NIAL Pusiness Close
B PE o o rezond

5o C.S'L'N 3
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS EINAL DECISION: %‘:ﬂéf‘; Ceatnre) e

[ APPROVED A SUBMITTED R_| TResidenho).

1 APPROVED WiTH CONDITIONS

[J TABLED

[ DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 36-674 of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government officia) who will be responsible for
making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES 0O Mo [X. If YES, then on a separate page,
please furnish the following information;

A) The name of the local government official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made.

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

C) Anenumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Owner:

gmw&%% 22994

DATFE




Walker County Planning Office

Rezong; Tonditional Use Variance & Variance Application
Rezone [Ciconditional Use Variance [ Variance

Curvent Zoning: Requested Change:
Rz C- .,
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
0- 191-09% H-le-25  [PBco.o”
Applicant/Owner & Phone: Wi !’.er h&."* ene (N yers s @ A ":) [ ij/

Street Name & Number: | 'I‘qb S locu"k s "‘:; /Qoqc;{
Mailing Address:__Joq gk (4, L?ch’g{
City, State, Zip Code: Rﬁ S5V :‘l t, GA Ron4l

Regunest: QO\(\(\L ‘Lk {-])*Q_':Z SN \]"'1"-;- Q"}C OCU"C_Q \
; . . ~ @1 Stan Porter made a motion to approve
TC%LL‘ oy Hb\) A ;L L pCV'/C. Cxt " ]Q\CSL with the condtions that a fence or
[, J 7 landscaping be put up on the residentail
side of the property and that the entrance
design be approved by the Road Superintendent.
Todd Holt seconded the motion to approve with

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: conditions. The vote was unanimous.
The motion to approve with conditions carried.
[ APPROVED AS SUBMITTED
S -8 -2025 ['g/ APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS
I3 TABLED
[J DENIAL

[3 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

[} APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[ TABLED

1 DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 36-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government official ‘who will be responsible for .
making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES [J NO [k 1f YES, then on a separate page, \f/

please furnish the following Information;

A) The name of the local government official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made.

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to each local official during the I
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application. “-' ég'!;,'
%,
€) An enumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the .1.5'[2, ”;
applicant to each local government official within the past two years. e%..cf}. 5-’
ALl
Az
- o=
Signature of Applicant/Owner: 3 -.-\E, § &? =
fupw\© ¢ oS
. -
~ " 7, '&Usr 1&.@'. (g"?
Jaede &l 27 i g O
L\)Qrﬂr ' S50 0 7N b e 2 4]-)9-25 "J;, » Coun' “\\‘
APPLICANT/OWNER ~ DATE Mhggn



Walker County Planning Office

Rezone, Conditional Use Variance & Variance Application

[ Rezone ﬁ_’fConditional Use Variance [J variance
Current Zoning: Requested Change:
wndimional Vse Fo allo '
R‘ 2 small-scale in-home clogy aoardmzj
Map & Parcel Date: Fee:
O-190 -69% Y-1p-20es | [DD.09

Applicant/Owner & Phone: 9 AX£.N Abbasi Y35- 6|x-0252
Street Name & Number: (009 H omj Dyive

Mailing Address:
City, State, Zip Code: Rossville , GA 107¢Y]
Request: | am requzsﬂn% fo _house uwp +o 10

do%s at  a  Hme v in_Nothe bomdinﬁ*a

MUV SN0 vescues. (easures  will be taken to
duve o negjarive efFect on e nelcahborlpoaaf, er

: included leter,
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

[0 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED

[ APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

[] TABLED Will Ingram made a motion to deny
= due to the proximity of the neighboring
6 A5:2095 E{ DENIAL houses. Todd Holt seconded the motion

to deny. The motion to deny was

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FINAY, DECISION: unanimous with Rob Walthour abstaining

1 APPROVED AS SUBMITTED (1OM the vote. The motion to deny carried.

[1 APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

1 TABLED

[0 DENIAL

The following disclosure is required of the applicant(s) by Section 36-67A of 0.C.G.A. The following is for
disclosure purposes only and does not disqualify the petition.

Within the past two years, have you made either campaign contributions totaling $250.00 or more and/or
given gifts having value of $250.00 or more to a local government official who will be responsible for
making a recommendation or decision on the application? YES [J NO Ff. If YES, then on a separate page,
please furnish the following information;

A) The name of the local government official(s) to whom cash contribution or gift was made.

B) The total dollar amount(s) of each campaign made by the applicant to each local official during the
two years immediately preceding the filling of the application.

C) An enumeration and description of each gift having value of $250.00 or more made by the
applicant to each local government official within the past two years.

Signature of Applicant/Owner;

7. §-10-26

APPKICANT/OWNER DATE




---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Bailey Clements <b.clements@walkerga.us>
Date: Tue, May 6, 2025 at 3:14 PM

Subject: 609 Holly Drive

To: Jon Pursley <j.pursley@walkerga.us>

Hey Jone, | just left 609 Holly Drive. | would feel comfortable approving the variance.
The "boarding" aspect is very small. There are three kennels in a downstairs area of the
home. The flooring has been redone and is epoxy to make cleaning and sanitation
easier. They are in the process of putting up a privacy fence in the backyard as well.
Even though the set back for the house and fence is not 200/400ft, the very minimum
number of animals being boarded should not cause an issue on the property or to
neighbors. There is no sound-proofing at this time, but due to the location in the
residence, as well as it being a brick home, | do not think that anything extra would be
necessary at this time. They also did have a Dept. of Ag license when they lived in
Wildwood, and are working to renew it to the new location. | have verified her previous
agent with the Dept. of Ag and have full confidence that if they licensed them previously,
they will do so again.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Bailey Clements

Executive Director

Walker County Animal Services
706-375-2100



